FY 2023 Board Materials & ABQO Documents
Schedule: Meetings are held monthly on the third Wednesday of each month at 9 AM. They alternate with Full
Board meetings commencing in January and Executive Committee Meetings commencing in February, The
calendar is prepared at the annual meeting (which was changed to January in FY 23)
Schedule
July 20, 2022
August 17, 2022 - cancelled
September 14, 2022
QOctober 19, 2022 — cancelled
November 16, 2022
December 21, 2022
January 18, 2023 — ANNUAL Meeting
February 15, 2023
March 15, 2023
April 19, 2023 - cancelled
May 17, 2023
June 21, 2022
*Due to unavailability of members

Meeting notice
Members are reminded via email the week prior.

Agenda*
All meetings follow the same agenda:

¢ Open by the President or designee

* Review of Minutes

» Financial Report

» Executive Director’s Report

* New Business

¢ Adjournment
*with the exception of the annual meeting, written agendas are not provided as we use the same one for
each meeting

Packets
Packets are sent with the reminder. They include the Executive Director’s Report and financials. Even when a
meeting is cancelled, an Executive Director’s Report is prepared and sent to members (included)

Minutes
Are sent within 2-3 days of the meeting (included)

Webcasting/recording
Meetings are not recorded

Board Resolutions
Any resolutions passed are in the minutes of the meeting




Committee Meetings

e There were no committee meetings this fiscal year

Annual Budget Report

e The annual budget report is in the annual report
e The QEDC does not prepare 4-year financial plan projects

Annual Independent Auditor’s report includes internal control and management letter (included)

Property Acquisitions and Disposition/procurement policies

e The QEDC acquisition/procurement policy is to purchase goods and services from reliable purveyors. If
possible we purchase local. In this year the QEDC purchased office supplies and computers. Old
computers are disposed of according the NYC Dept. of Sanitation procedures. Procurement is done by
the Administration Manager under the direction of the Executive Director.

List of Real Property
e The QEDC does not own any real property.

Personal & Real Property Transactions

e There have not been any personal or real property transactions.

Investment Policies
e The QEDC policy is that the Executive Committee oversees all investment of funds. The Audit and
Monthly Financial report provided at board meeting details the status of QEDC accounts

Fee Schedules
e The QEDC does not charge any fees for services, except for use of the Entrepreneur Space Kitchen
Incubator which are listed here: https:/entrepreneurspace.org/about-us/facility-prices/

Performances & Evaluations for FY 23 (included)




Executive Director Report
July 20, 2022

Office Status
We continue to work hybrid with Rob, Ricardi, Loretta, Aaron (intern) and Seth using the office
more than others. Sam M and Sarah used the LIC WeWork space weekly.

Ricardi Calixte and Erika Campoverde left at the end of June. With the changes in staffing and
planning for programs that commence after Labor we are holding a “Regrouping Event on July
27 to discuss our individual roles and how we can work together and increase productivity.

Business Services

WBC

EAC

Closed out the WBC Covid grant. We have requested funding and waiting for it to be
drawn down.

Closed out the EAC Covid grant. Received funding for FY23 EAC grant with the
program commencing in October.

Start UP

All winners received their first $5K installment. Based on their progress their second
$5K will be released after Labor Day. For FY23 we will ramp up our relationships with
colleges and other small business resource centers in order to improve the program.
Though classes will be online, we will have a monthly meet up October — February,

Our Summer Intern interviewed 10 representative clients about the impact of our work.
We will use this for promotional purposes and possibly our annual report.

We will be increasing the use of Consulting Advisors — professionals with expertise in
the field to do individual consultations with clients. Advisors will be under contract and
work hourly.

Neighborhood Development

Sam Massol has been promoted to Director of Neighborhood Development. Beny Castro
has been named Project Manager for Corona.

Working with merchants along Corona Plaza .We have provided the Borough President a
list of priorities to address quality of life issues in Corona Plaza as per the Task Force he
convened, Working DOT and local electeds

Completed the Richmond Hill Avenue 360 grant

We received a new Avenue 360 grant for Astoria Blvd and will be hiring a Project
Manager



*  We have been doing graffiti clean up work in districts of new council members and have
implemented new program protocols. Josh Mero has taken over the program.

HICT
» Completed all four enline classes — put in reimbursement and meeting with CWE to plan
FY 23 program

Entrepreneur Space
o Kathrine honored at Fancy Food Convention for her work.

* Signed contract with M Friedman RE to rent out top floor

MiQ
» Met with Hudson and Savia retailers for MiQ client inclusion in shops at JFK
¢ Rebranded with a new logo

QTC
*  “Queens Rises Back” at KAS June 25 was a success with 2000+ guests and 50+ vendors.
Costs were covered by sponsors.

Queens Together
¢ HUD is doing intake for the 250K grant - could take 2-4 months
¢ NY Community Trust granted $160K ($80K for two years) which allows us to hire
Jonathan Forgash as Director as of August 1.

Administrative

e Tom Farrell has updated HR handbook. Needs to be reviewed. . Our policies were
outdated and need to reflect current conditions in terms of hybrid work formats and
benefits. Additionally, I asked Tom to look at our by-laws and various policies. Seeking
1-2 Board members to assist in reviewing.
Received $310K in FY23 budget, awaiting NFGI and Clean up NYC funds allocatio
Received $100K in NY'S budget and $75K from Assem Cook
Reimbursements are finally coming in as are private grants
Need to review health insurance costs — meeting with Just Works
Christine Callahan was resigned from the board; Michael Rodin has not communicated
with us in over a year; Larry Sokol will become a Consulting Advisor (and will no longer
be on the board). The PANYNIJ will appoint a replacement for Christine but we will
have two openings.
e We would like to ask board member Steve Levin to update our website
*  FY21 staff reviews were completed and compensation was updated.




Queens Economic Development Corporation

Cash balance as of end of month: June 2022 - Preliminary
Bank of America 373,568
Bank of America - new account 78,589
BNB Bank 100,000
Capital One - new 20,939
TD Bank - investment # 1 294,332
TD Bank - investment # 2 300,000
Santander money market 100,578
Total 1,268,001
Funds borrowed for day to day operations through: June 2022 - Prelim
Funds spent 1,743,935
Less - funds received (1,203,481)

Funds borrowed from reserve 540,454




Queens Economic Development Corporation

Report period: July 2021 - June 2022

Budget for Total Remaining SBS SBS SBS SBS SBS SBS SBA-WBC CWE / NYS-EAP Fundraising
Fiscal year Actual budget Avenue | marketing | Chamber | MWBE NDGI Neighbor | 10/01/21 - SBA DYCD EDC 06/01/20 - EAP and Private| Board
balance NYC & graffitti | on the go 360 09/30/22 Covid 2 contract | Tourisim | 05/31/21 Covid Funds Approved

Contracts 0
Contracts Annualized included
fundraisers 1,339,187 100,000 | 101,500 75,000 80,395 40,000 | 100,000 | 150,000 | 120,292 0 0 73,500 | 200,000 298,500
Funds Received 1,203,481 91,275 87,704 78,337 73,190 64,526 | 157,472 0 0 0 65,853 36,750 | 100,000 448,375 |
Salary & Fringe
Salary 976,900 962,131 14,769 79,088 83,460 68,320 64,859 64,699 68,000 116,405 86,892 65,558 0 59,400 114,204 91,246
Fringe 19% 178,221 164,951 13,270 15,632 12,040 12,400 10,256 5,301 18,108 20,256 10,240 5,236 0 16,286 13,096 26,099
Total Salary & Fringe 1,155,121 1,127,081 28,040 94,720 95,500 80,720 75,115 70,000 86,109 | 136,661 97,132 70,794 0 75,686 | 127,300 117,345
otPs
Start up grant (RWNYC prize) 30,000 50,000 {20,000) 50,000
Pass through expense 0
Consultant - lobbyist 60,000 55,000 5,000 55,000
Marketing & advertising 20,000 62,495 (42,495) 55,008 7,488 |
Rent 20,025 20,025
Telephone and online service 16,000 21,297 {5,297) 21,297
Postage / shipping 800 59 741 59
Office supplies and equipment 3,000 4,283 (1,283) 4,283
Equipment lease 20,000 17,699 2,301 17,699
Cleaning and maintenance 8,000 16,733 (8,733) 5,250 11,483
Printing / job ad 1,000 743 257 743
Accounting 52,800 52,800 0 5,280 5,280 5,280 5,280 3,960 6,000 21,720
Audit fee 8,500 0 8,500
Consultants and contractor / Corong 60,000 135,407 (75,407) 76,678 6,225 4,000 32,575 15,829
Travel 1,000 757 243 757
Meeting/workshop/events 10,000 56,343 (46,343) 56,343
Staff development / training 2,000 0 2,000
Insurance 6,000 7,592 (1,592) 7,592
Payroll service 4,000 3,757 243 3,757
Bank charge / credit card fee 5,000 5,070 (70) 5,070
Dues, fee and software license 4,000 3,363 637 3,363
Miscellaneous / pass through grantg 5,000 103,431 (98,431) 18,268 85,163
Indirect cost 8,611 14,062 10,936 9,706 (43,315)
Total OTPS 317,100 616,854 (279.729) 5,280 0 5,280 5.280 0 90,569 18,022 23,161 33.224 50,008 0 32,575 289,454 55,000
TOTALS SALARY/FRINGE/IOTPS 1,472,221 1,743,935 (251,689) 100,000 95,500 86,000 80,395 70,000 176,678 154,683 120,292 104,018 59,008 75,686 159,875 406,799 55,000
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Queens Economic Development
Minutes — 7.20.22 Board Meeting

Attendance: Seth Bornstein, Ryan Walsh, Anita Srivastava, Ben Guttmann, Winston Crosswell,
Stephen Levin, Shurn Anderson, James Bua, Loretta de Saussure, Verdia Noel, Gianna , Philippa
Karteron, 7185911200 Staff: Seth Bornstein, Josh Mero, Loretta de Saussure

Call to order; 9:04am

Financials

* We are still awaiting $400K in receivables. When the final accounting for FY22 is
prepared we anticipate a small surplus.

» The Entrepreneur Space budget deficit will be eliminated once we receive the $125K in
NYS funds. As there is no tenant in the upstairs space yet, we are losing income (we are
trying to rent it out).

* We opened a new account at Dime Savings Bank for Queens Together. As of August 1

the program, with Jon Forgash as director, will commence. There is currently $98K in the
account.

Motion to approve: Bua, seconded: Winston

Executive Director report

July 27 we have scheduled a staff/consultant “Re-grouping” session. We want to go over what
everybody does and determine a model as we go forward. This will include developing a more
formal hybrid office program that will go into effect after Labor Day.

Business Services

¢  WBC grant and EAC are completed staff hired for those programs are excellent (Josh
Mero and Beny Castro), but they’re excellent so we placed them in new positions; Josh is
working in administration and has taken over the graffiti program. Beny is working with
Corona Plaza development,

¢ We had 4 winners for Startup and are looking to revamp the program next year. Meeting
with a new workspace in Jamaica and possibly adding some in-person classes for the
Startup.

¢ QOur summer intern met with clients and wrote up success stories for [0 businesses that
we will use in our promotional materials.

Consulting advisors update - Our advisors assist our staff and let us help more clients. As
such, we will expand the program.

Neighborhood Development — Sam Massol is now Director of Neighborhood Development and
will oversee the Corona Plaza and new Astoria Blvd. programs (we are hiring a manager for the
latter). He secured an SBS grant for Astoria Blvd (similar to Corona Plaza). As our
Neighborhood 360 grant is completed, Sam Smouha is now working on marketing and media
outreach for the entire organization,




HICT — We are hoping to expand the program with a new CWE grant.
E-Space — We have a hired real estate company to rent the top floor.
MIQ — We have new logo and are working with airport retailers to refer clients.

QTC — Queens Rises Back on June 25 had 2K guests and 50 vendors from Queens. We also
supported the Queens Rising events.

Queens Together — Commences August 1 to assist restaurants and food businesses. This a new
sector to our portfolio.

Admin —- HR handbook is being rewritten in light of changes in the work environment. We will
also look at the By-laws and various policies. It is hoped that 1-2 Board members can volunteer
to review the drafts.

Budgets:
¢ Received $310K in city and $175K in state funding and waiting for more in post-budget
funds.

o Currently use Emblem insurance but we are looking at Just Works that does
payroll/insurance/etc. Full disclosure, my daughter works there but would not be
involved.

o Christine Callahan has resigned, but the Port Authority will suggest a replacement

s Michael Rodin has not responded to notifications for over a year. James Bua will try and
contact him.

» Larry Sokol will leave the board has he will be a consulting business advisor for us.

e Steve Levin’s company has done an excellent job in building us a new website for the
Entrepreneur Space; as such we would like him to work on a new website for the QEDC.
He would recuse himself on discussions of QEDC website issues on the board level as he
will be compensated. Ryan Walsh asked if we bid this out. The Executive Director said
we did not but we did when we did the Entrepreneur Space. Based on his work then we
would like to sole source the project. There was no disagreement. Steve noted he would
discount the project for us.

o FY’22 staff reviews completed; the Executive Committee will review the Executive
Director.

e Shurn Anderson was thanked for her assistance.

s We may do an in-person meeting in September and November for the annual meeting,

Meeting closed by Winston @ 9:34



Executive Director Report
August 17, 2022

Office Status

We continue to work hybrid with Josh, Rob, Ricardi, Loretta, and Seth using the office more
than others. Sam M, Sarah and Victor use the LIC WeWork space. We will have a more
formalized program after Labor Day.

With the changes in staffing and planning for programs that commence after Labor Day, we had
an1 in-person “Regrouping Event on July 27 to discuss our individual roles and how we can work
together to increase productivity. The goal was achieved so that everyone — staff and part-time
business counselors (A/KA Advisory Business Counselors — ‘ABC”’s) are familiar with each
other’s portfolios and skill sets.

Business Services

WBC
¢ Closed out the WBC Covid grant. We waiting a $250K reimbursement
EAC
¢ Closed out the EAC Covid grant. We are waiting for a $100K reimbursement. Received
funding for FY23 EAC grant with the program commencing in October.
Start UP
e We are in discussions with the QBP to work with them for FY23. The BP is focused on a
“T'ech Competition.” We have developed a working paper on how we can work together
for the benefit of the borough. It is being reviewed by the BP office. Whatever we decide
in FY23 we will ramp up our relationships with colleges and other small business
resource centers in order to improve the program. Though classes will be online, we will
have a monthly meet ups at different locations throughout the borough, October —
February.

e We continue to increase the use of ‘ABC’s: professionals with expertise in the field to do
individual consultations with clients. Advisors will be under contract and work hourly. A
boiler plate contract for all consultants is being developed and should be ready by
September. Ricardi Calixte will be our ABC for the MWBE program.

Neighborhood Development

e We continue to work with merchants along Corona Plaza. We have provided the Borough
President a list of priorities to address quality of life issues in Corona Plaza as per the
Task Force.

e For the new Avenue 360 grant for Astoria Blvd we have hired Victor Prado as the Project
Manager. IHe is meeting community groups and assessing the area.



o  We commenced graffiti clean up work in districts of new council members and have
implemented new program protocols. Josh Mero has taken over the program and has met
with participating council members chief of staff,

HICT

o Completed all four online classes —awaiting the $30K reimbursement and mecting with
CWE to plan FY 23 program,

Entrepreneur Space
e M. Friedman RE trying to rent out top floor.

e Met with Hudson and Savia retailers for MiQ client inclusion in shops at JFK
e Rebranded with a new logo.

e Kick off meeting of the new Fiscal Year is September 21. We will be applying for new
state funds. We will be back with a kiosk at the USTA.

Queens Together
o HUD sent us the list of documents needed for the 250K grant. We hope to have them
ready by the end of the month and sign an agreement so we can draw down funds by late
fall.
¢  We are using the NY Community Trust grant $160K ($80K for two years) which allowed
us to hire Jonathan Forgash as Director as of August 1.

Administrative
o Tom Farrell has updated HR handbook. I have reviewed it and will meet with him 8/26.
Our policies were outdated and need to reflect current conditions in terms of hybrid work
formats and benefits. Additionally, I asked Tom to look at our by-laws and various
policies. Seeking 1-2 Board members to assist in reviewing.
e We began working with board member Steve Levin to update our website

The budgets are attached. Please note we received $200K last week. The balance in the 6024
account is now $300K. Though cash flow is weak we believe as more reimbursements come in,
we will have sufficient funding to cover our costs and not tap into other reserves. Likewise when
we receive the $125K reimbursement from NYS, that will cover the incubator deficit.

As we are still waiting on a number of accounts receivable, the financials detailing FY 22 will
not be ready until next month. At that time we will commence the annual independent audit.

As noted our next full board meeting is September 14 at 9AM. An evite went out but a reminder !
will be sent to all members.
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Queens Economic Development Corporation

Cash balance as of end of month: July 2022
Bank of America 63,657
Bank of America - new account 108,539 $200,000 just ca
Dime Bank 100,000
Capital One - new 20,939
TD Bank - investment # 1 294,332
TD Bank - investment # 2 300,000
Santander money market 100,578
Total 988,046
Funds borrowed for day to day operations through: July 2022
Funds spent 124,202
Less - funds received 0

Funds borrowed from reserve 124,202
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Executive Director Report
September 14, 2022

Office Status

Commending September 6, we have opened the office in the hybrid model with at least three
staff members in each day, although Friday will be a remote day for most and we may only have
1-2 people in the office. Some staff members use the LIC WeWork space and two staff members
are in the neighborhoods they work out of as part of the SBS Avenue NYC program. They will
come into the office as needed.

Please note the phones will answered live (though last week its was not yet in place due our first
week back). If for any reason there is not enough staff to answer phones it does go to voice mail
which is checked a minimum of twice a day.

In July we had an in-person “Regrouping Event to discuss our individual roles and how we can
work together to increase productivity. The goal was achieved so that everyone — staff and part-
time business counselors (A/KA Advisory Business Counselors — ‘ABC’’s) are familiar with
each other’s portfolios and skill sets.

Business Services

WBC
e Closed out the WBC Covid grant. We waiting a $250K reimbursement
e The renewal application has been sent in,
EAC
e Closed out the EAC Covid grant. We are waiting for a $100K reimbursement. Received
. funding for FY23 EAC grant with the program commencing in October. So far we have
12 registered and have room for 7 more.
Start UP
o For the 2023 Start UP! we will partner with the QBP and it will be “Tech & Innovation
focused with new categories and additional sponsorship. Details are being finalized but
we hope to announce it in early October. We will ramp up our relationships with colleges
and other small business resource centers in order to improve and publicize the program.
Though classes will be online, we will have a monthly meet ups at different locations
throughout the borough, October - February.

* We continue to increase the use of Advisory Business Consultants (‘ABC’s:
professionals with expertise in the field to do individual consultations with clients).
Advisors will be under contract and work hourly. A boiler plate contract for all
consultants has been developed and will be signed by each ABC. Ricardi Calixte will be
our ABC for the MWBE program.




Neighborhood Development

¢ We continue to work with merchants along Corona Plaza. We have provided the Borough
President a list of priorities to address quality of life issues in Corona Plaza as per the
Task Force.

e For the new Avenue 360 grant for Astoria Blvd and five other nearby commercial streets,
we have hired Victor Prado as the Project Manager, He is meeting community groups
and assessing the area.

*  We commenced graffiti clean up work in districts of new council members and have
implemented new program protocols. Josh Mero has taken over the program and has met
with participating council members chief of staff.

HICT
e Completed all four online classes —awaiting the $30K reimbursement and meeting with
CWE to plan FY 23 program. We are secking a Korean speaking instructor.

Entrepreneur Space
¢ M. Friedman RE trying to rent out top floor,

¢ With the arrival of the $125K grant we have a small surplus.

¢ We are planning an event in November to inform all business advisory agencies about the
space.

s Met with Hudson and Savia retailers for MiQ client inclusion in shops at JFK.
e Rebranded with a new logo. !
¢ Planning for the holiday season. '

¢ Kick off meeting of the new Fiscal Year is September 21. We will be applying for new
state funds,

» We had our annual kiosk at the USTA.

¢ Applied for EDA Tourism funding

Queens Together

e HUD sent us the list of documents needed for the 250K grant. We will be using NY
Grant Company to assist in the HUD onboarding process,

* We are using the NY Community Trust grant $160K ($80K for two years) which allowed
us to hire Jonathan Forgash as Director as of August 1. He has been hosting/cohosting a ;
number of promotional events for the sector and will work with 2 ABC’s focused on
restaurants.




Administrative
» Tom Farrell has updated HR handbook and by-laws to keep these documents current vis-
a-vis new regulations and hybrid work policies. The Executive Committee will review it
and then [ will send to the board for their review.
* We began working with board member Steve Levin to update our website

The budgets are attached. Since last month reimbursements have been coming in but we are still
awaiting city documents for FY23 funds.

We are still waiting on a number of accounts receivable. When all are received we will
commence the annual independent audit.

As we did this year we moved our annual meeting in January. We will do that again on January
18, 2023.



Queens Economic Development Corporation

Cash balance as of end of month: Aug 2022
Bank of America 261,270
Bank of America - new account 348,678
BNB Bank 100,000
Capital One - new 20,939
TD Bank - investment # 1 294,332
TD Bank - investment # 2 300,000
Santander money market 100,578
Total 1,425,797
Funds borrowed for day to day operations through: Aug 2022
Funds spent 232 757
Less - funds received (51,000)

Funds borrowed from reserve 201,757
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QEDC Board Meeting Minutes — 9.14,22
Attendance: Shurn Anderson, Jim Bua, Ben Guttmann, Stephen Levin, Ryan Walsh, Verdia
Noel, Anita Srivastava, Ryan Walsh, Staff: Seth Bornstein, Loretta De Sassure, Jonathan
Forgash, Rob MacKay, Sam Massol, Josh Mero
Call to order: 9:06
Financials:
Since July most of reimbursements have come with the exception of SBA and EAC (expecting
both soon). The FY’23 budget is still a work in progress as we are awaiting final city budget

numbers,

E-space received $125K from the state over the summer, Revenue not where we’d like it to be
as we need to rent upstairs space.

Motion to accept: Anita, Jim/Ryan seconded

Exec Direct report:

Officially on hybrid schedule, at least 3 people in per day M-Th. Had our regrouping event in
July, entire stafffABCs met up. The event helped everyone understand roles and how we can
work more efficiently.

WBC — Andrea submitted the renewal application. Ladies lunch & learn series starting.

EAC — Bhavna closing out COVID grant, business course commences end of month

StartUP — Though not public yet, the Borough President will co-sponsor with additional private
funding. Tech winners will get a larger prize. Classes will continue to be remote, but with once-
a-month meetups. An announcement is tentatively scheduled for 10/3/22

ABCs — Currently we have nine consultants in various sectors.

Neighborhood Development (Sam Massol) — Back to school in Corona Plaza 9/17. AveNYC
in Astoria has commenced with new project manager Victor Prado.

Marketing (Rob Mackay) — At our 11" year manning the kiosk a US Open gave away a lot of
swag from different places and Queens in Your Pocket Guides

Queens together (Jonathan Forgash) — ABC’s have been very helpful. Promoting our
restaurants and upcoming events; partnering with media people to mention the restaurants,

HICT — commencing in January

MiQ — slow but planning popups/promotions




E-space — As noted received the FY22 grant. Yesterday was the business incubator conference;
needed a caterer and they used one of our clients who received good reviews.

Administrative — New HR manual will be sent Executive Committee shortly for review.
Our annual meeting will be in Jan 2023, November will be our next board meeting,.

Meeting adjourned



Executive Director Report
October 19, 2022

Office Status

The office is open M-Thur from 9 -5 with at least two (usually four) staff each day. Phone as re
being answered and we do have some scheduled visitors. Friday there is usually 1 staff person
but phones are sent to voice mail and picked up 3x a day. Three staff members use the LIC
WeWork space or Espace and two staff members are in the neighborhoods they work out of as
part of the SBS Avenue NYC program. They come into the main office as needed.

Business Services

WBC
e Closed out the WBC Covid grant. The reimbursements have been approved and should
be deposited soon
e The renewal application has been sent in.
» In addition to online events, in-person has commenced with an in-person event scheduled
for Nov.1 at the Nexus Center in Jamaica
EAC
e Commenced the fall program with 20 clients.
Queens Tech + Innovation Challenge
¢ Formally the Start UP! we partnered with the QBP and kicked off the program October
3. Funding is from RWNYC, Flushing Bank and Tech NYC (still awaiting details of
how their funds will be passed through. Classes are online, with monthly meet ups at
different locations throughout the borough — the first one is Nov.2

» Contracts have been signed with all but one Advisory Business Consultants (‘ABC’s;
professionals with expertise in the field to do individual consultations with clients).

Neighborhood Development

*  We continue to work with merchants along Corona Plaza. We have provided the Borough
President a list of priorities to address quality of life issues in Corona Plaza as per the
Task Force. A large garbage bin has been ordered through DOT & DOS and will
installed shortly.

e For the new Avenue 360 grant for Astoria Blvd and five other nearby commercial streets,
Victor Prado, the new Project Manager has commenced assessing the area.

e We commenced graffiti clean up work in districts of new council members and have
implemented new program protocols. Josh Mero council members chief of staff so that
we can do as much work as possible prior to cold weather setting in.

HICT



s Completed all four online classes —awaiting the $30K reimbursement and meeting with
CWE to plan FY 23 program. We are secking a Korean speaking instructor,

Entreprencur Space
» M. Friedman RE trying to rent out top floor — it has been very slow
» With the arrival of the $125K grant we have a small surplus.
» We are planning an event in December (moved from November) to inform all business
advisory agencies, community groups and electeds about the space.

e Met JFK about a potential pop up at the new terminal
¢ Planning for the holiday season - pop up at Bulova Center planned

e Kicked off with a QTC meeting September 21. We applied for new state monies through
federal EDA funding.

e  We had our annual kiosk at the USTA.
e Applied for EDA Tourism funding

Queens Together
* HUD sent us the list of documents needed for the 250K grant. We will be using NY
Grant Company to assist in the HUD onboarding process.
e Jon Forgash has been promoting the restaurants and commenced a new eblast “Eats in
Queens.” Please sign up: https://www.queenstogether.org/eatsinqueens

Administrative
» Tom Farrell has updated HR handbook. I have attached it. Please review and send me
any comments. [ would like to send to the board for their approval priot to our Novembet
board meeting
We began working with board member Steve Levin to update our website
Alan Chan has sent the auditor all documents for this years audit. |
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Executive Director Report
November 16, 2022

Office Status

The office is open Monday -Thursday from 9-5 with at least three (usually five) staff each day.
Phone are being answered and we do have some scheduled visitors. Friday there is usually 1 staff
person but phones are sent to voice mail and picked up 3x a day. Three staff members use the
LIC WeWork space or Espace and two staff members are in the neighborhoods they work out of
as part of the SBS Avenue NYC program. They come into the main office or use WeWork as
needed.

Business Services

WBC
e Closed out the WBC Covid grant. The reimbursements have been approved and are
slowly being transferred to our account.
e The renewal application has been sent in.
e [n addition to online events, in-person events have has commenced.
o Attending annual WBC in December.

o Commenced the fall program with 16 clients
e Attended annual EAC conference

Queens Tech + Innovation Challenge (QTIC)

* Formally called the Start UP! Business Competition, this year we’ve partnered with the
QBP and kicked off the QTIC October 3. Funding is from RWNYC, Flushing Bank and
Tech NYC (still awaiting details of how their funds will be passed through). There are 5
awards of $20,000 in Al Tech, Urban Tech, Aviation Tech. Food and Community. We
have made a tremendous effort to publicize the program. Classes are virtual but are
holding monthly in person meet ups. We have four classes already and more are
scheduled through mid-December and then in January and February. The link to the
program is http://queensstartup.org/ The next in person event is a holiday mixer at the
Nexus Center Jamaica, December 14", All Board Members are urged to inform their
networks about the QTIC.

e We have 10 Advisory Business Consultants — “ABC’s” - professionals with expertise in
the fields of operations, finance and marketing who supplement our staff by providing
individual consultations to clients. This will be very helpful as the ramps up and clients
need consultations on a timely basis.



Neighborhood Development

HICT

We continue to work with merchants along Corona Plaza to address quality of life issues.
A large garbage bin has been ordered through DOT & DOS and will be installed shortly.
We also engaged a professor from Pratt Institute to do a beautification study.

For the Avenue 360 grant for Astoria Blvd and five other nearby commercial streets, the
Project Manager has commenced assessing the area to determine commercial
revitalization priorities.

We are doing graffiti clean-up work in districts of council members who have provided
funding and will be in contact with chiefs of staff so that we can do as much work as
possible prior to cold weather setting in (when we cannot clean effectively).

We are advocating for better police presence to electeds to help commercial streets.

In January we will commence online classes funded by the Consortium for Worker
Education. We are seeking to add a Korean speaking instructor

Entreprencur Space

M. Friedman RE trying to rent out top floor — it has been very slow.
We are planning an open house event December | to inform all business advisory

agencies, community groups and electeds about the space. We urge the board to inform
any interested parties.

Attended annual NYS incubator conference.

Helped 9 MiQ clients get placed at the first JFK holiday pop up

Planning for the holiday season pop-ups at Bulova Center, M. Wells restaurant and
possibly Corona Plaza.

Monthly in person meetings have commenced.
Developing the 2023 calendar

Publicizing events through the It’s in Queens site
Planning for 2023 event to replace the Queens Taste

Queens Together

HUD sent us the list of documents needed for the 250K grant. We are using NY Grant
Company to assist in the HUD onboarding process. Should be ready by 11/18 for
submission.,

Providing business counseling to restaurants and commenced a new eblast “Eats in
Queens.” Please sign up: https://www.queenstogether.org/eatsinqueens

Planning a limited “Restaurant Month™ early next year




Adpdnistrative

Tom Fartell, our ABC attorney, has updated HR handbook, Conflict of Interest form and
bylaws. The Executive Community is reviewing all and pending their decision these
documents will be sent to the full board to review prior to the January, 2023 Anoual
Meeting.
We are working with board member Steve Levin on a new website
Alan Chan has sent the auditor all documents for the FY22 audit. As usual we have filed
and extension and hope to have ready by 2/23,
Finalizing NYC funding from SBS and DYCD; and NYS funding. Need to start lobbying
for FY24
Support tequested for two major economie development projects:

o Innovation Queens — ED spoke in favor

o QueensRail Link
Requested new PANYNJ board member
Stephen Franklin, former board member is now back with Capital One Bank and asked
to be on the board,
Annual Meeting to be held January 18, Board mermbers needi ng re-election will be
gueried next month prior to renomination.
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YOU'RE INVITED TO THE
ENTREPRENEUR SPACE

OREN
HOUSE

FOR COMMUNITY

OFFICIALS & ORGANIZATIONS

THURSDAY
DECEMBER 1

5:30-7:30PM

36-46 37TH STREET
LONG ISLAND CITY, NY

RSVP: INFO@ENTREPRENEURSPACE.ORG

i cens Econonie
Eﬁ‘l\-E’E_P RENEUR ! ED C g:l:;:;n;;af;ré'jrpamlien

HOME TO FOODMAKERS

=

The fastest growing entreprencurial sector is FOOD and since 2010 the Entrepreneur Space has helped over
750 clients. On December 1 we open our doors to community leaders to learn all about us and what resources
we provide for your constituents and networks. We are a center of small business energy, professional kitchen
space, business counseling and technical assistance right here in Queens County! https://entrepreneurspace.org/
provides great information about the Entrepreneur Space — but seeing is believing!

Come see New York City’s longest operating nonprofit commercial kitchen incubator. View our facilities, meet
our clients, taste delicious treats and perhaps purchase some too!

This invitation is transferable to other members of your organization, but you must RSVP by November 29" at
info@entrepreneurspace.org

Ilook forward to seeing you,

Seth Bornstein
Executive Director



Upcoming Events

Nov | 2023 Queens Tech & Innovation Challenge '
1 Online Workshop Series

" Waiember, 6, 20223t 11 PR | Onlie

How to'Launch and Scale

Innovative Products that |
60 Viral

Max Ringelheim

How to Launch and
Scale Innovative
Products that Go Viral

DATE Wednesday,

November 16

TIME 1:00 PM - 2:00

PM

LOCATI Online
ON

Do you have an innovative
product? Do you know what it
takes for a product to go
viral?  This workshop will
showcase all the positive and
that
underpin a viral business. You
the  workshop
having a stronger knowledge

negative  elements

will leave

queensstartup.org/events/

Ourws Toan
lenzvalion Chrferge

An oppartnity towin a $20K Prize and amplity your impact
2023 Queens Tech + Innovation
Challenge Info Session

Tech | Food&Bev | Community

2023 Queens Tech +
Innovation Challenge
Info Session

DATE Monday,

November 21

TIME 1:00 PM - 2:00

PM
LOCATI Online
ON

In this information session,
the program director will
explain the eligibility,
application  process  and
answer all of your questions.

View Event Details

[

“Queens .
ntrepreneti

x

Meetup® |
Hotiday Edition

Queens Entrepreneurs
Meet up — Holiday
Edition

DATE Wednesday,

December 14

TIME 5:30 PM - 8:00

PM
LOCATI Jamaica, Queens
ON

Our second in-person meetup
is returning during the most
wonderful time of the year™

Whether youre a local
small business entrepreneur
or a tech startup founder,
youre welcome to join us,
meet other entrepreneurs and
learn about the resources that

113



Minutes
QEDC Board Meeting — November 16, 2022

Attendance:, Shurn Anderson, Jim Bua, Winston Crosswell, Gianna Frederique, Ben Guttmann,
Stephen Levin, Mark Lucaj, Verdia Noel, Anita Srivastava, Ryan Walsh; Staff: Seth Bornstein,
Josh Mero, Loretta De Saussure

Call to order: 9:05AM
Winston Crosswell opened the meeting and asked Seth Bornstein to review the documents

Financials:

The first sheet now covers the QEDC, Entrepreneur Space and Queens Together accounts. There
is over $1.5M with almost $800K in reserved funds. We are finalizing our SBS NDGI funds but
we expect it to be approximately.

The Entrepreneur Space has a deficit of $92K. We can allow for up to $125K as that can be
covered by NYS funds. We are planning to speak to the landlord about a lease extension which
will help us rent out the top floor and to aggressively fund raise.

Queens Together funds are utilized mostly for food relief. Working with a consultant to access
the $250K HUD grant.

Motion to accept financials as shown: accepted
ED report:

Business Services — WBC is doing a combination of online and in-person events. Andrea
Ormeno recently held a credit webinar and Meet the Lenders event. Attending national
conference in December.

EAC — 16 participants — midway through program. Bhavna Punjwani attended EAC conference.

Queens Tech& Innovation Challenge — Sarah Liu is the point person for this huge expansion
on StartUP! All classes are online and participants have to take at least 4 classes over the coming
months to be eligible. We are recruiting judges and instructors. There is one in-person events per
month. The first one earlier this month in LIC attracted 40+ people. Other events are Nexus on
12/14; Borough Hall in Januay, in LIC in Februaryon the horizon. We have expanded eligibility
this year to those that attend/ attended a Queens School, and/or make a commitment to use
money in Queens if they win.

ABCs — We have 10 consultants, including a lawyer, who advise clients one-on-one.



Neighborhood Development — Beny Castro andVictor Prato working with Sam Massol manage
the SBS projects in Corona Plaza (focus on events and sanitation); and in Astoria, where the first
study is taking place on 5 commercial streets.

HICT — Online classes commence in January online.

Entrepreneur Space - Marketing with open house on 12/1. Community groups could refer to
clients.

MiQ — Upcoming marketing opportunities include JFK, Bulova Center and M, Wells
Marketing - Rob MacKay working on 2023 calendar

Queens together - Working on grant; bi-monthly blast, food distribution and planning a 2023
small scale Queens restaurant week.

Crime issues - Need to become a better advocate for crime issues and need to look at past
programs that can revivied.

2 issues we support:
¢ Innovation Queens in Astoria;
¢ Potentially Queens Rail Link on the underutilized Rockaway line.

Board membership: Steve Franklin is back at Capital One and would like to come back on the
board. He has been approved by the Executive; full board can vote on him in January, 2023

Website - Steve Levin is working on new QEDC website; hope to complete for next year
2 events coming up: 12/1 incubator open house, 12/14 entrepreneur meetup

Meeting close: 9:40



Executive Director Report
December 21, 2022

Business Services

WBC

Planning a combination of online and in person events for Jan — June, 2023
Andrea Ormeno attended the annual WBC meeting last week

QEDC honored by the Queens Women’s Chamber of Commerce for assisting businesses
during COVID

Completing the fall program with 15 clients

Attended annual EAC conference

Planning for a “mini” EAC class in Spring in Jamaica
Possibly applying a two-year “Reimagine NY” grant

Queens Tech + Innovation Challenge (QTIC)

Seven events have been held including 2 in person meetups. Three events are scheduled
for December and more are being planned for January and February. Seventy
applications have been submitted. We continue to publicize the program. The next in
person event is at Borough Hall, January 18%. We have 21 judges committed but are
seeking more. Applications are due March 1. We are planning the announcement of
finalists for late March (tentatively at MMI) and the presentations/winner announcements
in late April (tentatively at RWNYC).

Funding is through RWNYC ($50K), Flushing Bank ($25K) and a consortium of
companies through TechNYC($60K). The first two are committed; the office of the QBP
assures that the $60X is in place

Neighborhood Development

Continuing to work with merchants along Corona Plaza to address quality of life issues
and provide community events. A large garbage bin has been ordered through DOT &
DOS and will be installed after new year. The beautification study will be completed then
foo.

Completing studies as required for the Avenue 360 grant for Astoria

Completed graffiti clean-up for the season in districts of council members who have
provided funding. This will commence again after March 30.

Advocating for better police presence to electeds to help commercial streets.



e Responded to an SBS RFP seeking a borough-wide organization to create 3 merchant
groups in six months. We felt it was a fruitless task and waste of resources and let SBS
know. We suggested to SBS that sector based approach was more realistic and offered to
form a borough-wide restaurant association. As such we submitted a proposal.

HICT

e In January we will commence online classes funded by the Consortium for Worker
Education. We are seeking to add a Korean speaking instructor

Entrepreneur Space

e We are in deficit primarily to empty second floor. We were told by the realtor we need to
have longer primary lease (the current one expires in 2024). [ spoke to the landlord about
a no-cost extension for five years and it is being considered. We will not renew with the
current realtor and may work with the current landlord’s rep (Pinnacle Realty).

e In order to plug the deficit for this fiscal (which could be $150K) I plan on utilizing two
state grants that total $175K.

e We held an open house event December 1 to inform agencies, community groups and
electeds about the space. We're hoping to get leads. Additionally we are working with
current clients to use the kitchen more often.

e Nine MiQ clients are at the first JFK holiday pop up — we will survey in January to see
how they did

* A second holiday season pop-ups was held at the Bulova Center.

e The 2023 calendar will be mailed shortly

e Publicizing events through the It’s in Queens site

e Planning for 2023 event to replace the Queens Taste

e Though a great deal of effort we are hoping to extend our Market NY contract through
June, 2023 for funding to pay for the Queens Jaz Trail map and app.

Queens Together

e All documents were submitted to HUD 12/1 and we hope to hear from them so we can
commence reimbursements.

e Providing business counseling to restaurants.

e Proposing funding as noted to SBS for a Queens Together Restaurant Association.

e Hoping to expand and “Eats in Queens ” blast to 3x a month. Please sign up:
https://www.queenstogether.org/eatsinqueens

e Planning a limited “Restaurant Month” early next year




Administrative

Executive Committee should complete their review of the updated HR handbook,
Conflict of Interest form and bylaws so they can sent to the full board to review prior to
the January, 2023 Annual Meeting,

We are working with board member Steve Levin on a new website
Alan Chan has sent the auditor all documents for the FY22 audit. As usual we have filed
and extension and hope to have ready by 2/23.
Having difficulty in accessing reimbursements for our Market NY grant due to semantics
and bureaucratic procedural issues — Alan is working on it
Finalized NYC funding from SBS and DYCD; and NYS funding. Need to start lobbying
for FY24
Congidering a new position — Director of Grant Administration
The ED will meet with proposed new PANYNIJ board member
Stephen Franklin, former board member is now back with Capital One Bank and asked to
be on the board.

o Resumes for both will be sent to the Executive Committee prior to going to the

full Board

Annual Meeting to be held January 18, Board members needing re-election are being
queried priot to re-nomination.




Queens Economic Development Corporation

Cash balance as of end of month:

QEDC

Bank of America

Bank of America - new account
Investments

- Dime Bank

- TD Bank - investment # 1

- TD Bank - investment # 2

- Santander money market

ESPACE
Capital One

QUEENS TOGETHER
Dime Bank

TOTAL

100,000
294,332
300,000
100,578

November 2022

366,592
266,539

794,910

Funds borrowed for day to day operations through:

Funds spent
Less - funds received
Funds borrowed from reserve

1,428,041

76,167

37,762

1,541,971

November 2022

664,114
(381,220)

282,894
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QEDC Exec Board Meeting Minutes — 12,21.22

Attendance: Shurn Anderson, Winston Crosswell, Tracy Capune, Ben Gutiman, Verdia Noel; Staft:
Seth Bornstein, Loretta de Saussure, Josh Mero

Call to order: 9:03 AM

Financials:

o 1.5 million in bank, BOA account 600K, healthy cash flow.

o E-space has a deficit but we have NYS grants that can cover it
Motion to approve budget — Ben seconded

Executive report:

WBC - Andrea Ormeno attended the Annual WBC Conference this week. We were honored by the
Queens Women’s Chamber of Commerce event.

EAC — Fifteen clients from the fall class will graduate in January (hopefully in-person). We are planning
mini-EAC program for March/April/May @ Greater Nexus.

Queens Tech & Innovation Challenge — Funding has been coming in and assured by the QBP that
TechNYC will provide their $60K. Two meetups went very well. Publicizing to all communities, making
sure that our borough is represented. Next meetup is in Jan 18 @ Boroughlo Hall.

Neighborhood Development — Organizing Corona Plaza holiday events. Garbage bins from the city to
be installed in 1/23.

HICT — Classes commence in January online.

E-Space - The second floor has been empty for year. We have the $125K grant and another $175K grant
so cover the deficit. Additionally we will apply for a new grant through NY'S to train people for
entrepreneurship, if we get it we’ll put most of the staff salaries on that. The open house on 12/1 attracted
25-30 people from eight groups.

MiQ — Held a market JFK and Bulova

Tourism — The 2023 Calendar is being printed/mailed next week. Queens Taste is scheduled for May.
Space looks great, cleaned up well. Need to confirm date hopefully before New Year’s. This year we’d
like to bring in a more curated list of restaurants.

Queens Together — All documents were sent to HUD for the $250K but it will still take time to access.
We received word that $500K was allocated for FY 23 but need it writing, Planning a limited restaurant
month in Feb/March,

Administration:

* Please send back any feedback on updated HR/ bylaws updated as we need vote on it at the
annual meeting JTanuary .




s  The annual meeting on 1/18/22 @ Borough Hall. All those with expiring terms will renew for
IWO0 more years.

¢ New website — Stephen Levin working on it, keeping the logo the same - adding more
functionality

¢ Auditor still working on everything — no problems so far,
¢ Finalized funding with city/state — have to start lobbying for next year.

¢ Board issues: Stephen Franklin from Capital One and Aidan O’Connell form the Port will join the
board. Looking for more board members from different fields and diverse backgrounds.

o Josh Mero was named Director of Grant Administration — dedicated to administrating grants,
making sure everything necessary is done as needed,

Adjoarned: 9:36AM




Welcome

Agenda
QEDC ANNUAL MEETING

January 18, 2023
9:00 AM
Queens Borough Hall — Room 200

Introductions — Board, Staff, Guests

Call to order — Tracy

Capune, President

» Review of Minutes from 2020 Annual Meecting
* Financial Report - Scth Bornstein/Anita Srivastava

Elections — President

Introduction of new board members Aidan O’Donnell and Stephen Franklin

Motion and vote to re-elect the following for one-year terms expiring 2023:
Aidan O’Donnell

Motion and vote to re-elect the following for two-year terms expiring 2024:
Tracy Capune

Stephen Franklin
Gianna Frederique
Ben Guttmann
Philippa Karteron
Veronica Rose
Bill Singh

Anita Siravastava
Ryan Walsh

Motion to vote and elect the Offices for a one-year term expiring 2023:
Tracy Capune, President

Winston Crosswell, Vice President

Anita Srivastava, Treasurer

Shurn Anderson, BP Representative

Ben Guitmann, Member-at-large

Verdia Noel, Secretary

Committees

*  Audit & Finance — Chair and Members to be determined




Business Items - Seth Bornstein

Audit — being completed

Review of staff was undertaken by the Executive Director

Review of the Executive Director was undertaken by the Executive Committee
Review of Motions for the Board

Items Requiring Motions — Tracy Capune

The Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to sign contracts and
agreements for the Corporation. (Signed resolution required)

Motion to approve or disapprove

The Board reviews consultant contracts annually (documents are available for
Board Member review upon request) Currently we have contracts with:

o)

c ¢ o o 0o O O

The Driscoll Group — Government affairs

Alan Chan, CPA — Accounting services

Avaya — Phone equipment

Hi Lo Computer — Computer Maintenance/supplies

Central Business Solutions/Wells Fargo - Copier

Unique Building Maintenance — Office cleaning

Magic Touch — Graffiti removal

Instructors/Business Advisors:

= Tri-Angular {(Roy Pellicino), Malle Haridat, Edgard Hernandez, Jin

Zhang, Thomas Farrell, Larry Sokol, Ken Motschwiller, Kim
Robinson, David Manrique, Alfonso Zhicay, Monique Perriti,
Janet Tanqury

Webline Designs (Board Member) — one time contract to redesign the
QEDC website

Entrepreneur Space:

@]
o]
o

Innovation Associates — Incubator Management

Estate of David Stein - Entrepreneur Space lease

Maintenance agreements with various vendors for HVAC, building safety
and equipment repair for the Entrepreneur Space

Motion that the Board is knowledgeable of the aforementioned contracts.

The Board reauthorizes that bank and/or investment accounts may be opened with
the approval of the Executive Commitiee, There must be at least two signatories
on the all accounts including the Executive Director and on member of the
Executive Committee.

Motion to approve or disapprove.



»  All checks are to be signed by the Executive Director and shall have a cover note
with the invoice noting the account, whom payable to, and amount, This will be
available to the Executive Committee on request. In an event that precludes staff
from working in the office and are working remotely the following policy shall be
enacted: banking (deposits/payments) can be done via the banks online
programs. All payments will be approved by the Executive Director and actual
use of the bank online programs shall be done by the Executive Director or their
designee. Members of the Executive Committee shall have access to all online
banking records,

Motion to approve or disapprove

To be reviewed:

¢ Updated By-laws
e Conflict of Interest Forms to sign and return
s HR Policy

The above can be reviewed and acceptance be made via email

2023 Report

» Review of Annual Report
» Presentations by Staff and Consultants

New Business — Emily Lin

Motion to approve or disapprove
2022 Report

= Review of Annual Report
» Presentations by Staff and Consultants
» Distribute Meeting Calendar and Board List

New Business — Tracy Capune/Seth Bornstein

= Lvents

o Restaurant Month — March
QTIC Finalists — March
QTIC Announcements - April
Queens Taste — May
June Board/Supporter Reception

o O 0O

Adjournment
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Queens Economic Development Corporation
120-55 Queens Blvd. Suite 309
Kew Gardens, New York 11424
(718) 263-0546

HUMAN RESOURCES POLICTES AND PROCEDURES

This handbook is not a contract, expressed or implied, guaranteeing employment for any
specific duration. Although we hope that your employment relationship with us will be
long term, either you or the Queens Economic Development Corporation (QEDC) may
terminate this relationship at any time, for any reasons, with or without cause or notice.
Please understand that no supervisor, director or representative of QEDC other than the
Executive Director has the authority to enter into any agreement with you for
employment for any specific period of time or to make any promises or commitments
contrary to the foregoing. Further, any employment agreement entered into by the
Executive Director shall not be enforceable unless it is in a formal written agreement and
signed by you and one of QEDC’s authorized representatives.

The Mission of the Queens Economic Development Corporation is as follows:

To assist entrepreneurs, business owners, and government agencies to create jobs through
programming that assists small businesses, encourages entrepreneurship, and promotes
our community with an emphasis on supporting those of low-to-moderate income,
women, minorities, and immigrants.

GOALS:  The goals of QEDC policies and programs are to:

» Attract new businesses and promote industry sectors and industry clusters.

¢ Stimulate the productive capacity of existing business through technology
transfer, marketing, financing, and general management assistance.
Foster the development of self-employment opportunities.
Build critical links between the community and commercial opportunities.
Improve the economic quality of life on a neighborhood level.
Promote the cultural, recreational, and sporting sectors to residents and visitors, as
a means to encourage tourism.

OBJECTIVE: Provide a seamless spectrum of service for economic development to
existing businesses, entreprencurs and commercial centers — to create, expand, or aitract




business — through the delivery of hands-on technical assistance, informational assistance
or neighborhood-development assistance.

QEDC expects that its staff will:
* Provide services in a professional manner.
e Respect New York City’s multicultural diversity.

e Pursue professional development opportunities to enhance the work of QEDC as well
as their own personal abilities.




THE HUMAN RESOURCES POLICIES AND PROCEDURES
MANUAL

The board of directors develops and approves the Human Resources Policies and
Procedures Manual, and directs the Executive Director to implement these policies and
procedures. Any questions regarding these policies and procedures shall be directed to
the attention of the Executive Director or his/her designee.

Information presented in this manual indicates the importance that QEDC places on the
professionalism and loyalty of its employees. While the blueprint may change from time
to time, QEDC’s commitment to a competent staff providing effective service to clients
will remain the hallmark of the organization’s internal policies. QEDC expects a a great
deal from its employees, but promises the satisfaction of working on a team that shares a
mutual respect for the people we serve and an ability to respond to the needs of the most
vulnerable neighborhoods of our Borough and our City.

We ask all employees to treat their colleagues with respect and kindness as they are the
most important people in your orbit.

Welcome to the Queens Economic Development Corporation.



ANTI-HARASSMENT &
NONDISCRIMATION POLICY

Diversity

QEDC affirms a strong commitment to providing equal employment opportunity to all
qualified individuals regardless of ethnicity, age, race, color, religious beliefs, marital
status, handicap, gender, gender orientation or identification, veteran status, caregiver
status, or status as a member of any other protected class. QEDC complies with all Equal
Employment Opportunity laws and regulations and with the provisions of the Americans
with Disabilities Act in the areas of hiring, firing, compensation, benefits, training, and
promotion.

Sexual Harassment / Hostile Work Environment

QEDC prohibits sexual harassment of any of its employees by another employee AND by
any employee or agent of a person or firm with which QEDC does business,

For a more detailed description of QEDC’s Anti-Harassment policy, including a
Complaint Form and information about resources available outside QEDC, please see the
QEDC Sexual Harassment policy attached as Exhibit A,

RULES OF CONDUCT

Statements Regarding QEDC

Formal representation and public statements, both written and oral, regarding QEDC
shall be made only with the express approval of the Board of Directors, and/or the Exec-
utive Director or designee. Such representation and statements include press releases,
interviews, speeches, blogs, webinars, and other public relations or informational
materials. In addition, QEDC’s confidentiality policy and other policies apply to use of
social media. Because unintended disclosure and misunderstanding occur so easily on
social media, you are reminded to be aware of the risk of accidentally appearing to be
making statements on QEDC’s behalf.

Employees are permitted to post on social media platforms through accounts approved by
the Executive Director or designee, but are required to obtain approval before posting
about QFDC matters on personal social media accounts, email accounts, blogs, etc.

QFEDC reserves the right to monitor usage of QEDC’s social media accounts, and to
suspend or revoke QEDC-social media usage, and to discipline employees for violations
of this policy. This policy is not intended to restrict an employee’s right to discuss or act
together with co-workers to improve wages, benefits and working conditions, or in any
way restrict employees’ rights under the National Labor Relations Act.



Confidentiality

As part of its mission to provide the highest quality service to clients, QEDC assutes
those clients that any disclosures made to QEDC shall be held in confidence. Therefore,
employees shall keep confidential all nonpublic information pertaining to clients or to
QEDC (“confidential information”) during the course of their employment and for 6
months thereafter. Further, no employee shall use confidential information obtained
while in the employ of QEDC for the personal profit or benefit of that employee or of
anyone else. Any employee who is found to have contravened the rules regarding
confidential information will be subject to disciplinary action and possible termination of
employment. Nothing in this policy handbook is intended to interfere with or discourage
a good faith disclosure to any governmental entity related to a suspected violation of the
law.

Proprietary Information

As a condition of employment, each employee agrees that all copyrights to material
published or created by, or relevant to, OFDC and its programs, written or otherwise
created by an employee, whether tangible or intangible, and whether or how stored,
compiled, or memorialized (“Proprietary Information™), belong to QEDC and will be
returned upon separation of employment. Proprietary Information includes presentation
or workshop materials, teaching materials, workshop design, marketing materials
including online marketing, computer applications, algorithms, applications, software,
source code, and any other documents or procedures developed as part of QEDC'’s
programs and activities. Upon the termination of your employment, or if QEDC
otherwise requests, you shall promptly return to QEDC any copy of any Proprietary
Information, in whatever form or medium, in your possession or under your control.
Employee shall, if asked to by QEDC, sign a statement acknowledging, among other things,
that Employee has returned all such Proprietary Information.

Political Activity

Electioneering and campaigning activities and paraphernalia are prohibited on QEDC
premises and on sites of events hosted by QEDC. No employee shall use the name,
logos, funds, facilities, supplies, or equipment of QEDC in order to further his/her
participation in any political campaign on behalf of or in opposition to any candidate for
public office.

Subject to the above, QEDC employees, in their personal time and as private individuals,
may choose to involve themselves freely in the political process.

Participation in Community-Based Organizations (CBO)

If staff choose to take on leadership roles in Community-Based Organizations, they must
inform the Executive Director. 1f, in a role with the CBO, they are working on a project
that interacts with an ongoing QEDC project or program they must review that



participation with the Executive Director. The Executive Director shall, in his or her sole
discretion, have the authority to require the staff member to terminate or adjust the staff
membet’s participation in that project.

Dress Code

Employees shall wear clothing that is appropriate to an office environment and that will
project a professional image of QEDC.

Smoking Policy
QEDC enforces a smoke-free policy. All employees and visttors are prohibited from
smoking in the office.
EMPLOYMENT POLICY /STATUS
Employees of QEDC shall be classified in the following categories:
L. Full-time. An employee hired who is regularly scheduled to work a minimum of
35 hours per week.

2. Part-time. An employee hired who is regularly scheduled to work less than 35
hours per week.

3. Temporary (Full-time or Part-time). An employee who is hired for a period of
less than six (6) consecutive months. Temporary staff are not entitled to QEDC
employee benefits

4, Probationary Employee. A full- or part-time employee is considered a
probationary employee during the first 3 months of employment. Upon
completion of the three-month period the employee will be evaluated by his/her
supervisor to determine whether full-time employment should be offered,
probation continued, or employment discontinued. During the probationary
period, employees may be dismissed without notice and without recourse to
QEDC's grievance procedure.

Prior to completion of the probationary period, employees shall not be eligible for
any type of paid leave except designated holidays and any medical leave days
earned during this period.

5. Exempt Employee. An executive, administrative, or professional employee
whose responsibilities fall within the parameters established by the New York
State Department of Labor and applicable laws, and whose salary meets the
threshold requiremenits, shall be exempt from Overtime regulations.




WORKING HOURS
Business Hours
The Corporation’s hours of operation are generally from 9am-5pm, Monday through
Friday (thirty-five hours per week). The Corporation’s offices shall be closed on the
Federal holidays listed below under BENEFITS, in Section .
Overtime
A non-exempt employee shall not be requested to work more than 40 hours per week
without receiving overtime compensation, which shall be paid according to the state and
federal laws regarding wage and salary administration.
Each non-exempt employee’s regular hourly wage and overtime hourly wage is set out in

the Notice and Acknowledgement of Pay Rate and Payday given to him or her. A copy of
the Notice is in the Employee’s HR file and can be reviewed upon request.

Break Time for Nursing Mothers

QEDC accommodates employees who wish to express breast milk during the workday by
providing reasonable break times to do so. QEDC will provide a designated room, other
than a bathroom, that is shiclded from view, free from intrusion from coworkers and the
public, and is in compliance with all other applicable laws for this purpose.

Employees who use regularly scheduled rest breaks to express breast milk will be paid
for the break time. If the lactation break does not run concurrently with the employee’s
regularly scheduled compensated break, the lactation break time will be unpaid.

For questions related to this policy, please contact the Executive Director.

RECORD KEEPING, COMPENSATION, DOCUMENTATION

Time and Attendance Records

QFEDC is required by law to maintain accurate records of the time and attendance of all
employees. Falsification of time and attendance records may result in disciplinary action
and/or termination. All employee time sheets must be completed and signed by the
employee on the last day of the payroll period. The Executive Director or the employee’s
supervisor, as deemed appropriate by the Executive Director, will approve timesheets.

Employees who perform work away from the office must notify the Executive Director
or his/her designee in advance. These employees must be available for consultation with




their supervisors, other QEDC staff, or clients by telephone or video conference
equipment,

Hybrid Workspace and NY Health & Essential Rights Act (“HERQ™)

QEDC reserves the right to adopt a formal Hybrid-work policy in its discretion, Any such
policy will follow the guidelines and recommendations of the Centers for Disease Control
and the New York State Department of Labor; and applicable laws and regulations, such
as the Occupational Safety & Health Act, the Americans with Disabilities Act, the Age
Discrimination in Employment Act, and the NY Health & Essential Rights Act
{(“HERQO”). Adoption of any such policy will be accompanied by the notices, postings,
and training that are required by law.

In the absence of a formal Hybrid-work policy, the Executive Director shall adopt plans
and procedures consistent with official guidelines and recommendations, and adapted to
the needs of the Corporation. Failure to observe the provisions of either a formal plan or
the Executive Director’s plans and procedures shall subject the employee to disciplinary
measures, up to and including termination of employment.

On May 5, 2021, the NY HERO Act became law. The law mandates certain new
workplace health and safety protections in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. The
purpose of the NY HERO Act is to protect employees against exposure and disease
during a future airborne infectious disease outbreak. QEDC has enacted a HERO Plan, a
copy of which is available upon request from the Executive Director.

Any Employee with questions or concerns about the hybrid workspace, or about QEDC’s
employee health and safety programs in general, should feel free to raise such concerns

with either his or her supervisor or the Executive Director.

Lateness/Absences

Chronic lateness and frequent unscheduled absences are detrimental to the efficient
operations of QEDC. Such patterns of abuse place an undue burden on coworkers. It is
expected that each employee will report to work on time and continue to work until the
end of his or her workday. Frequent lateness, long lunch breaks, and/or frequent
unscheduled absences may be cause for disciplinary action including possible suspension
and termination.

Procedure:
Notification: Whenever possible, advance notice of absence or lateness should be given
to the immediate supervisor. If this is not possible, it is the employee’s responsibility to

telephone QEDC as early as possible, but no later than within fifteen minutes of the
scheduled reporting time.
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1. In the case of lateness, the employee should indicate an estimated time of
arrival.

2. Inthe case of absence, the employee should indicate whether the absence
should be charged to annual leave or medical lcave, and should give an
estimate of the expected date of return.

3. Tfan employee is absent for three workdays and the corporation receives no
notification it will be assumed that the position has been abandoned. The
Employee will be deemed terminated at the close of business on the third day.

Payroll Period and Payroll Procedures

Salaries for all employees are paid on a semi-monthly basis. Payroll checks shall be
distributed on the 15" and 30" of the month, unless otherwise approved by the Executive
Director. If payday falls on a holiday, checks will be distributed the day before the
holiday.

Employee salaries are determined by the Executive Director, consistent with Human
Resources policies and procedures.

Human Resource Files

Retention and distribution of employee information will be guided by the following
conditions:

L. A designated staff person shall retain secure custody of all human resources
and employee files.

2. QEDC will keep all job-related documentation such as hiring records,
performance reviews, disciplinary actions and job descriptions in an
employee's general personnel file. This information includes job title and
description, the employment application form, references, social security
number, W-4 withholding certificate, proof of employment eligibility, proof
of identity, resume/work history, starting date and salary (or Notice and
Acknowledgement of Pay Rate and Payday), hours to be worked, and
performance reviews.

3. QED(C will create and maintain a separate file for employee medical
mformation that includes records related to medical leave, reasonable
accommodations, workers' compensation claims, and disability matters,

4. QEDC will ensure that employee information is accessible and disseminated
only by those allowed by law to so access and disseminate it, and that such
dissemination will be only for legitimate business purposes or for legal
compliance.

5. Employees may review their human resource file upon request.
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6. All current employees’ 1-9 forms will be maintained separately.
Employees are responsible for informing the Executive Director or the employee’s
supervisor promptly of changes in name, address, telephone number or other personal
data.

BENEFITS
A. Types Of Leave

Bereavement Leave

QEDC provides bereavement leave as required but not to exceed 10 days for a full or part
time employee, with pay, in the event of the death of his/her parent, spouse, life partner,
child, brother, sister, grandparent or close friend. If more time is required, the Executive
Director should be consulted.

Medical Leave

Staff members who have completed the three-month probationary period are eligible for
paid medicalleave for absences from work due to illness, medical consultations, physical
therapy or similar for up to 20 days each year.

Unless otherwise required by law, sick leave earned but not used in a fiscal year may not
be carried forward, nor is it credited with monetary compensation. (The fiscal year runs
from July 1 to June 30 of the following year). No compensation is given for medical
leave days not used before the last day of employment.

New York State Paid Family Leave Act

New York’s Paid Family Leave provides job-protected, paid time off so you can:
e Bond with a newly born, adopted or fostered child,
o Care for a close relative with a serious health condition, or
o Assist with family situations when a family member is deployed abroad on active
military service.

You can continue your health insurance while on leave and are guaranteed the same or
comparable job after your leave ends. If you contribute to the cost of your health
insurance, you must continue to pay your portion of the premium cost while on Paid
Family Leave,

All eligible employees are entitled to participate in Paid FFamily Leave.
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Full-time employees: Employees who work a regular schedule of 20 or more
hours per week are eligible after 26 consecutive weeks of employment.

Part-time employees: Employees who work a regular schedule of less than 20
hours per week are eligible after working 175 days, which do not need to be consecutive.

Employees are eligible regardless of citizenship and/or immigration status.

For more information about the Paid Family Leave Act, see the description attached as
Exhibit B.

New York Citv's Earned Sick Time Act

New York City's Earned Sick Time Act requires employers to allow employees to use
paid time off for "safe time", i.e. paid time off for hours taken in connection with family
offense matters, sexual offenses, stalking and human trafficking, Paid leave under this
paid-sick-leave law may be used to cover absences from work resulting from the
employee or a covered family member of the employee being the victim of family
offense matters, sexual offenses, stalking or human trafficking.

For an absence of more than three consecutive workdays, an employer may require
reasonable documentation, but an employer cannot require that such documentation
specify the details.

For additional information about the Earned Sick Time Act, please contact the Executive
Director,

Documentation of Hiness

QEDC reserves the right to request medical documentation of illness at times and in the
manner allowed by law. In addition, an employee is required to submit a care provider’s
statement/note certifying that he/she has been under medical care and is able to return to
work under the following circumstances:

1. After an absence of four or more consecutive days, or of four or more days
in one month.

2. If the employee has been suffering a communicable disease.
3. If the employee has been hospitalized for any reason.
Extended Medical Leave

In cases where illness dictates that an employee be absent from work for a longer period
of time than is available in accrued medical leave, the employee may be granted extended
sick leave, which will consist of a combination of all medical and annual leave time. In
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certain circumstances, the Executive Director may request that the Board approve a time-
limited paid medical leave for employees who have served the organization with no
patterns of abuse and has consistently received high ratings in performance evaluations,
over time.,

Annual Leave

Paid annual leave will be determined based on the employee’s hire date. Employees
must take vacation in full each year. No vacation time may be used during the
probationary period. Staff members who resign from or are terminated by QEDC will be
paid for annual leave earned but not used, provided that employees who resign provide a
minimum of two weeks notice.

The annual leave dates for each staff member must be approved by the Executive
Director or his/her designee. Applications for annual leave should be submitted to the
super-visor 3 weeks in advance of the proposed leave dates if using S or more
consecutive days of Annual Leave. In extenuvating circumstances, as determined by the
supervisor, an application of at least 1 week’s notice will be considered. No more than
two (2) weeks annual leavemay be scheduled consecutively unless a written request is
made to the Executive Director.

Full-time employees will earn annual leave at the following rate (part-time employees
will earn vacation on a pro-rated basis):

Afier the initial probationary period, in year 1, an employee will earn 15 days per year,
commencing on July 1%

In years 2 and thereafter, an employee will earn 20 days, commencing on July 1%

An employee may, with the written approval of the Executive Director, carry over up to 5
days of annual leave into the following fiscal year, but must use such time before October
31* or lose it. Application to use leave time in this manner must be approved by the

Executive Director at least 2 months before the fiscal year ends.

Upon leaving QEDC, should an employee resign after annual leave time has been used
but not actually earned, payroll adjustments will be made accordingly.

Disability Leave

Full-time employees who have completed their probationary period are eligible to receive
disability benefits pursuant to applicable state and federal laws. Employees shall receive
disability benefits according to the coverage provided in the Disability insurance policy
carried by QEDC. An employee’s date of hire will remain unaffected by his/her absence.

QEDC will make every effort to reinstate an employee to the same or similar position to
the one held before the absence, whenever possible and subject to organizational needs.
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However, QEDC reserves the right to fill the vacant position while the employee is
absent and does not guarantee a position fo a returning employee. In addition, QEDC is
not obligated to consider the employee for promotional opportunities that may arise
during the employee’s absence, and the employee’s salary review date will be extended
by the leave of absence.

You may not receive short-term disability and Paid Family Leave benefits at the same
time. You may not take more than 26 combined weeks of short-term disability and Paid
Family Leave in a 52-week period

Military Leave

A full-time employee who is a member of an organized reserve unit of the Armed Forces
of the United States or the National Guard, and who attends a regular military camp, will
be granted the time, without pay, necessary to meet his/her obligation. A full-time
employee who is a member of an organized reserve unit of the Armed Forces of the
United States or the National Guard who is called into active duty shall be granted a
military leave of absence without pay for the period for which they are called. An
employee must give his/her supervisor advance notice of the dates of intended absence.
Military leave will not be counted against accumulation of annual leave days.

In case of active duty, the employee shall report for work at QEDC no later than 90 days
following discharge from active duty. In accordance with federal and state legislation,
QEDC acknowledges its responsibility to reinstate an employee who returns from
military service, and will make every effort to provide an equivalent position. However,
OFEDC also retains the right to deny reinstatement to the same or equivalent position if
QEDC*s circumstances have so changed as to make it impossible or unreasonable to do
so, or when doing so would be of such difficulty or expense as to cause undue hardship,
in accordance with the regulations promulgated under the Uniformed Services
Employment and Reemployment Rights Act (USERRA).

Leave of Absence Without Pay

A leave of absence without pay may be granted upon approval of the Executive Director
when such a leave does not conflict with the needs of the organization. Requests for a
leave of absence without pay shall be made, in writing and in advance, to the Executive
Director.

To qualify for a leave of absence, an employee shall have used all annual and sick leave
accrued. While on a leave of absence without pay, employees will not accrue or receive
annual or medical leave, or salary, and such time will not be counted for PFLA leave
purposes. Employees taking a leave of absence without pay may elect to contmue health
insurance benefits under provisions of COBRA (see Benefits section).

QEDC will make reasonable efforts to provide an equivalent position to that held by the
employee before his/her absence. However, QEDC retains the right to deny
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reinstatement to the same position if the organization’s circumstances have so changed as
to make reinstatement impossible or unreasonable to do so, or when doing so would be of
such difficulty or expense as to cause undue hardship to the Corporation.

B. Jury Duty

Full-time and part-time employees who have completed their probationary period and
who are called to serve as jurors or are subpoenaed to appear before a court as a witness
will receive their regular pay for up to 10 days of service minus any jury duty pay or
witness fee received for each work day while in court. Employees on jury duty should
report to work on any full or partial day when released from jury duty.

The receipt of a subpoena or of a notice to report to jury duty shall be reported
immediately to the employee’s supervisor. QEDC reserves the right to request that an
employee be postponed from jury duty if the employee’s services are deemed essential to
the operation of the organization.

C. Health Care/Disability Benefits

All full-time employees shall be entitled to health, disability, and unemployment benefits
subject to the terms of QEDC’s group health insurance policies as they exist from time to
time. Interpretive brochures relating to cach plan will be provided to each employee at
the time of employment, induction, or enrollment. Permanent employees shall be eligible
for coverage after completion of the probationary period.

D. Holidays

QEDC will observe the following holidays (the office will be closed):

New Year’s Day Columbus Day
Martin Luther King Day Election Day
Presidents’ Day Veteran’s Day
Memorial Day Thanksgiving Day
Juneteenth

Independence Day Thanksgiving Friday
Labor Day Christmas Day

Holidays that fall on a Saturday will be observed the previous Friday, those that fallon a
Sunday will be observed the following Monday.

Part-time staff working fewer than 20 hours per week will not be entitled to paid
holidays.

If an official holiday is observed during the period that an employee is on vacation or sick
leave, that day will not be counted in the total number of days charged to leave.
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E. Miscellaneous

COBRA (Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act)

In compliance with COBRA and related federal and state regulations, QEDC allows
continued medical coverage for terminated or retired employees and their covered
dependents under the terms of QEDC’s group health insurance policies. Questions
regarding COBRA coverage should be directed to Lauretta DeSaussere.

Allowance for Travel

After authorization from a supervisor, an employee using transportation on official
business shall be reimbursed for travel expenses at the standard approved rate, which will
be provided by the Executive Director, for a private car, and/or subway or bus fare. To
claim reimbursemeént, a monthly voucher must be prepared detailing and documenting
travel expenditures and approved by the supervisor.

EMPLOYMENT AND PROMOTIONS

QEDC’s policy is to extend equal employment opportunity to all applicants regardless of

ethnicity, age, race, color, religious beliefs, marital status, handicap, gender, gender

orientation or identification, veteran status, caregiver status, or status as a member of any
- other protected class.

Unless restricted by law, employment by QEDC is determined strictly by the ability of
the individual to perform the job that is available.

Promotions and merit increases will be based solely on ability, performance (including as
reflected in the annual performance review, or an interim review, where applicable),
attendance and punctuality, educational background, and experience. Individual
promotional and merit salary increases are authorized solely by the Executive Director,
within the confines of QEDC’s budget, with recommendations from division supervisors.

PERFORMANCE REVIEW
QFEDC considers the evaluation process to be a year-long cooperative effort between the
employee and his/her supervisor. Each employee shall receive an annual performance

review on or around the beginning of the fiscal year on July 1%,

Evaluations shall be conducted during the month of Junc by the appropriate supervisor.
Job descriptions also may be reevaluated at this time, The performance review shall be
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discussed in private by the employee and the Executive Director and/or the employee’s
supervisor. The employee may add written comments to the evaluation form regarding
any assessments made by the supervisor. Both parties shall then sign the evaluation
form, indicating that they have participated in the discussion. If the employee declines to
sign the evaluation form, the Corporation may have it signed by a witness to the
performance review discussion. The evaluation form shall become a part of the
employee’s human resource file. The performance review and evaluation form are not
subject to the Grievance Procedures,

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES
A grievance is a complaint about an employee’s working conditions, duties or relation-
ships, or a complaint arising from a decision made at a higher administrative level and

affecting an employee’s position within the organization and/or working conditions.

Informal Grievance Procedure

Whenever an individual believes that a situation, condition, or event related to his/her
employment or status is unsatisfactory and is subject to the control of QEDC, the
individual shall be expected and encouraged to take every reasonable step to resolve the
complaint informally,

If the employee so chooses, informal efforts at resolution of the grievance may include
referral of the complaint to the Executive Director. The Executive Director then may
make discretionary recommendations regarding an appropriate, mutually acceptable
solution.

The informal process, if followed and if resolution is reached, will not be recorded in an
employee’s human resource file. Any notes or memoranda written during this informal

process shall be placed in a separate, general QEDC grievance file.

Formal Grievance Procedure

If the Executive Director determines that the gricvance has not been resolved, the
grievant must file a formal, written complaint to the Executive Director within 10
business days of such determination being made known.

If the grievance involves the actions of the Executive Director, or if the grievant is the
Executive Director, the complaint shalt be presented to a designated committee of the
Board of Directors. Before presenting the formal complaint, the grievant shall alert
his/her supervisor or the ad hoc grievance committee, in writing, that the formal
grievance is being initiated.

A formal complaint shall state, specifically, the nature, the dates, times and places of
occurrence of the alleged problem,; list the specific policy or practice involved as well as
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all individuals thought to be involved; and also shall state concisely the relief or remedy
sought. The complaint must be signed by the grievant,

Upon receiving the complaint, the Executive Director or the grievance commiitee shall
acknowledge its receipt in writing, and shall make every effort to commence and
conclude an appropriate inquiry or investigation into the facts, as stated in the complaint,
within 20 business days.

Upon receiving the results of the inquiry or investigation:

1. Ifthe grievant is satisfied with the results of the inquiry or investigation, the
matter shall be considered resolved.

2. In cases where the grievant is dissatisfied with the results of the inquiry or
investigation, he/she must communicate such dissatisfaction, in writing, to the
Executive Director, with all prior information and a restatement of the relief
or settlement sought, within 5 business days. The communication must be
signed by the grievant.

3. Ifthe Executive Director is the grievant’s supervisor, then notification of
dissatisfaction should be directed to the President of the Board within 5
business days.

The Executive Director or President of the Board may elect to call a meeting with the
grievant and may choose to have present the grievant’s immediate supervisor as well as
any other members of the QFEDC staff who, in the Executive Director’s or the Board
President’s sole discretion, will be able to assist in the resolution of the situation.

The Executive Director or President of the Board, as applicable, may grant or deny the
relief requested, or provide such other remedy as is, in the Executive Director’s or the
Board President’s sole discretion, deemed fair and reasonable. The written decision,
listing the findings, the reasons for the conclusions reached, and the proposed resolution,
shall be issued no later than 20 business days after the receipt of the notice of
dissatisfaction,

All formal grievance documents will be recorded in an employee’s human resource file.

TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT

Termination is defined as any action that effectively severs the employer-employee
relationship. As stated at the beginning of this manual, continued employment of an
individual shall be at the will of the Corporation, subject only to the applicable laws.
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Termination Procedure

Upon termination of the employee’s relationship with QEDC whether voluntary or
involuntary, the immediate supervisor shall notify the Executive Director and his/her
designee. The employee’s file should be closed out with all final determinations on time
and benefits, as well as the reasons for termination and/or resignation.

Departing employees are entitled to pay in lieu of accrued unused vacation leave,
Employees who provide less than two weeks’ notice of resignation, will lose one day’s
unused vacation pay for each day of inadequate notice unless exempted from this
provision by the Executive Director. Accrued vacation, personal or sick leave cannot be
used to satisfy any part of the notice period.

Prior to leaving, the employee must submit a clear status report on all current work and
must present files and all other QEDC materials to the supervisor. The key to the office
should be turned into the employee’s immediate supervisor on the last day of
employment. Employee shall, if asked to by the Corporation, sign a statement
acknowledging that Employee has returned all of the Corporation’s property and all
confidential or proprietary information.

Resignation

Resignation is the voluntary termination of employment by the employee. If an
employee resigns while a disciplinary process is underway, the termination is considered
voluntary. Employees are requested to provide a minimum of 2 weeks’ notice of their
intention to resign, unless exempted by the Executive Director. A written notice of
resignation must be submitted to the employee’s supervisor for inclusion in the
employee’s human resource file.

Conditions for Involuntary Termination

Grounds for immediate dismissal include, but are not limited to:

1. Neglect of duties, or a pattern of insufficiency in the performance of duties as
reflected in unsatisfactory performance ratings and evaluation.

2. A pattern of excessive tardiness or absence.

3. Absence without leave or failure to report after authorized leave has expired
or after a request for such leave has been refused.

4, Violation of lawful directives (written or verbal), policy or direction given by
an immediate supervisor, or failure to obey any lawful or reasonable direction,
when such violation amounts to insubordination or to serious breach of
discipline.
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5. Conduct unbecoming to an employee of QEDC during working hours, which
may discredit the organization.

6. Offensive conduct or language toward QEDC clients, the public or
community, a supervisor, or staff member.

7. Criminal, disorderly, or immoral conduct while on duty.

8. Violation of policies or directives of QEDC’s Board of Directors, including
but not limited to the policies set out in this handbook (including the Sexual
Harassment Prevention Policy).

9. Negligence or willful damage to QEDC property, or gross waste of the
agency’s supplies and equipment.

10. Misrepresentations or false statements on employment applications, or in the
execution of QEDC programs or operations.

11. Intoxication or use of illegal drugs during working hours; lack of control over
mental or physical faculties; or possession of drugs or firearms during work
hours or in the Corporation’s offices or at events sponsored or participated in
by the Corporation.

Exit Interview

An exit interview shall be conducted with departing employees to determine the reason(s)
for leaving, to assess attitudes toward the organization, to explain details of all final
benefits and pay, and to ensure that QEDC property and advances are returned.
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Human Resources Policies & Procedures
Acknowledgment and Receipt

| have received my copy of the QEDC Human Resources Policies & Procedures.

The employee handbook describes important information about the Corporation, and |
understand that | should consult my manager regarding any questions not answered in
the handbook. | have entered into my employment relationship with QEDC voluntarily
and acknowledge that there is no specified length of employment. Accordingly, either |
or QEDC can terminate the relationship at will, with or without cause, at any time,
so long as there is no violation of applicable federal or state law.

1 understand that, except for employment-at-will status, any and all policies and practices
may be changed at any time by QEDC, and QEDC reserves the right to change my
hours, wages and working conditions at any time. All such changes will be
communicated through official notices, and | understand that revised information may
supersede, modify or eliminate existing policies. Only the Board of Directors of QEDC
has the ability to adopt any revisions to the policies in this handbook.

| have received the Employee Handbook, and | understand that it is my responsibility to
read and comply with the policies contained in the Handbook and any revisions made to
it.

Employee’s Signature

Employee's Name (Print)

Date
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EXHIBIT A
SEXUAL HARASSMENT PREVENTION POLICY
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EXHIBIT B
NEW YORK STATE
PAID FAMILY LEAVE ACT
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AMENDED AND RESTATED
BYLAWS
OF
QUEENS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

(As of September 1, 2022)

ARTICLE I - CORPORATION

Section 1 — Name

The name of the Corporation is: QUEENS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
CORPORATION (the “Corporation™).

Section 2 — Seal

The Corporation shall have a seal which shall be in circular form with the name of the
Corporation and its state and year of organization set forth thereon.

Section 3 - Changes to Name

The Corporation may by a vote of the Directors change its name.

Section 4 — Membership

The Board may establish one or more classes of Membership in this Corporation, fix
annual dues and other requirements for maintenance of any such Membership, and establish any
benefits associated with such Membership, provided that no benefit which is prohibited by virtue
of the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation may be provided to Members. Persons
qualifying for Membership shall be designated “Members,” but such designation shall not denote
status as a “Member” of this Corporation as that term is defined and used in the New York Not-
for-Profit Corporation Law (“NFPL”). Members shall have no voting or any other rights
provided to members as defined in the NFPL.

ARTICLE II - PURPOSES

The purposes for which the Corporation has been organized are as stated in its Certificate
of Incorporation, as it may be amended from time to time. In furtherance of such purposes, the
Corporation shall, without limitation, except as set forth within its Certificate of Incorporation:
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(a) Receive and administer funds or other property; hold by bequest, devise, gift,
grant, purchase, lease or otherwise, either absolutely or jointly with any other person, persons or
Corporations, any property, real, personal, tangible or intangible, or any undivided interest
therein, without limitation as to amount or value; sell, convey or otherwise dispose of any such
property and invest, reinvest, or deal with principal or the income thereof in such manner as, in
the judgment of the Directors, will best promote the purposes of the Corporation without
limitation, except such limitations, if any, as may be contained in any instrument under which
such funds or other property is to be received by the Corporation. No limitation or condition in
any bequest, devise, grant or gift may be accepted if it is in conflict with any provision of the
Certificate of Incorporation, or would otherwise affect the Corporation’s status under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and its regulations as they now exist or as they may
hereafter be amended (the “Code™) or such corresponding law as may, from time to time, be in
force, or cause the Corporation to be liable for any tax, penalty or sanction under the Internal
Revenue Code.

(b)  Give, assign, or otherwise transfer or grant any of its property outright or upon
lawful terms regarding the use thereof, to other corporations provided that any such transfer shall

be made only to a corporation exempt from federal income taxation under Section 501(c)(3) of
the Code.

{c) Generally, do any and all acts and things and exercise any and all powers that it
may now or hereafter be lawful for the Corporation to do or exercise under the laws of the State
of New York incident to or connected with or in advancement of the foregoing purposes, but not
for the private benefit of any third party or for the pecuniary profit or financial gain of its
Directors or Officers, except as permitted under Article 5 of the NFPL.

ARTICLE 111 - DIRECTORS

Section 1 - Management of the Corporation

The management, supervision and control of the property, affairs, business and concerng
of the Corporation shall be vested in a self-perpetuating Board of Directors which shall consist of
not less than five (5) Directors and not more than nineteen (19) Directors. The Board shall have
the authority to fix the number of Directors constituting the whole Board of Directors, including
authority to change the maximum number of Directors by adopting an amendment to this Section
1 of Article III. Unless and until otherwise so fixed by the Board of Directors, the number of
Directors constituting the Board of Directors shall be seventeen (17). Each Director shall
continue in office until his or her successor shall be duly elected. Each Director must be at least
25 years of age.

Section 2 — Conflicts of Interest

Each Director shall, prior to becoming a Director, complete and sign the Corporation’s
Statement of Ethical Standards and Contlicts of Interest-Policy (the “Conflicts Of Interest
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Policy”), and deliver the signed copy to the Executive Director, The Board may amend or restate
the Conflicts of Interest Policy from time to time, in its sole discretion. Each Director shall
complete and sign the Conflicts of Interest Policy at the Annual Meeting of Directors, or as
shortly afterwards as possible. Simultaneously, each Director shall disclose the name of any
entity of which such director is an officer, director, trustee, member, owner, or employee and
with which the Corporation has a relationship, and any transaction in which the Corporation is a
participant and in which the director might have a conflicting interest.

Section 3 - Newly Created Directorships and Vacancies

Newly created Directorships resulting from an increase in the number of Directors, and
vacancies occurring in the Board for any reason, may be filled by a vote of a majority of the
Directors then in office, although less than a quorum exists. A Director elected to fill a vacancy
caused by resignation, death or removal shall be elected to hold office until his or her successor
shall be duly elected.

Section 4 - Removal of Directors

Any Director may be removed for cause by the vote of two-thirds of all of the Directors
then in office.

Section 5 - Resignation

A Director may resign at any time by giving written notice to the Board or the Executive
Director. Unless otherwise specified in the notice, the resignation shall take effect upon receipt
thereof by the Board or such Officer, and the acceptance of the resignation shall not be necessary
to make it effective.

Section 6 - Quorum of Directors

Unless otherwise provided by law, the Certificate of Incorporation or these By-Laws, a
guorum for the transaction of business or of any specified item of business shall be a majority of
the number of Directors constituting the whole Board.

Section 7 - Action by the Board

Unless otherwise required by law, the Certificate of Incorporation or these By-Laws, the
vote of a majority of the Directors present at the time of the vote, if a quorum is present at such
time, shall be the act of the Board. Each Director present shall have one vote.

Section 8 - Place and Time of Board Meetings

The Board shall hold its meetings at the office of the Corporation or at such other place
within the State of New York as the Board may from time to time determine.
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Section 9 « Action without Meeting: Participation Remotely

(a) Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board of
Directors or a committee thereof may be taken without a meeting, if a written consent thereto is
signed by all of the Directors and such written consent is filed with the minutes of proceedings of
the Board.

(b)  Unless otherwise restricted by these By-Laws, members of the Board of Directors
or of any committee may participate in a meeting of the Board or any such committee remotely
by means of conference telephone, Zoom, Microsoft Teams, or similar communications
equipment or platform by which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other.
Such participation in a meeting shall constitute presence in person at the meeting; provided,
however, that remote participation in any meeting that involves decision-making that is aided and
supported by demonstrations, handouts, exhibits, Power-Point presentations, or videos used at
the meeting and which the remotely participating board member cannot view or does not have
access to, shall not be permitted. Any vote taken by the Board or committee at a meeting in
which remote participation is used must be by roll call to unequivocally record how any remotely
participating board members voted.

Section 10 - Annual Meeting

An Annual Meeting of the Board shall be held on the third Wednesday in November at
6:00 p.m. at the Offices of the Corporation or a location within the County of Queens designated
by the Executive Director. At the Annual Meeting of the Board, the Board shall appoint Officers
for the ensuing year and shall elect or appoint the Members of Standing and/or Special
Commitiees of the Board for the ensuing vear.

Section 11 - Notice of Meetings of the Board, Adjournment

Regular meetings of the Board or any Committee may be held without notice at such time
and place as the Board or the Committee shall from time to time determine. Special meetings of
the Board shall be held upon notice to the Directors and may be called by the Executive Director
upon at least five days’ notice to each Director either personally, by recognized overnight courier
service, or by confirmed-delivery email; special meetings shall, on written request of five
Directors, be called by the Executive Director or by the Secretary in a like manner. Special
meetings of a Committee may be called by the Chair of the Committee, if one has been
appointed, by the Executive Director on his or her own volition, or upon the demand of a
majority of the Members of the Committee upon at least three days’ notice given as set forth
above. Notice of a meeting need not be given to any Director who submits a waiver of notice
whether before or after the meeting or who attends the meeting without protesting prior thereto
or at its commencement, the lack of notice to him or her,

A majority of the Directors present, whether or not a quorum is present, may adjourn any
meeting to another time and place. Notice of the adjournment shall be given all Directors who
were absent at the time of the adjournment and, unless such time and place are announced at the
meeting, to the other Directors, or members of the Committee, as applicable.
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Section 12 - Chair

At all meetings of the Board, the Executive Director, or in his or her absence, a chair
chosen by the Board shall preside.

Section 13 - Committees

The Board of Directors may appoint one or more Standing or Special Committees, each
consisting of not less than three directors, and the Board, or, if'it fails to do so, the Committee
may appoint one of those directors as chair of the committee, If any committee is established, it
shall not have power or authority to approve grants or expenditures that (i) are in violation of
Section 716 (restricting loans to Officers and Directors) or Section 719 (restricting certain
payments and distributions of assets) of the NFPL and (ii) if the Corporation is a “Private
Foundation” as defined in Section 406 of the NFPL, any grants and/or expenditures that do not
comply with the provisions of the Corporation’s Certificate of Incorporation included therein by
virtue of said Section 406.

The Corporation may, in the discretion of the Board, have one or more of the following
Standing Committees: Executive, Audit and Finance, Development, and Nominating and
Governance. The charters of the Standing Committees shall be established by the Board and
may be amended by the Board, including for the purpose of eliminating responsibilities or
transferring responsibilities to a different Standing Committee. The Charters of the Committees
shall be as adopted by the Board from time to time and copies thereof shall be placed in the
records of the proceedings of the Board. Standing Committees shall prepare written minutes of
their proceedings and shall promptly provide written statements of actions taken by them to all
members of the Board and in no event later then the next meeting of the Board.

Except for the Audit and Finance Committee, non-directors may serve as non-voting
members of a Committee if invited by the Committee. Standing Committees shall meet no less
often than four times in each fiscal year of the Corporation. The Executive Director shall be
invited to attend Standing Committee meetings (other than Audit and Finance Committee
meetings), subject to the power of any such Committee (as granted in their respective charters) to
exclude him or her from all or any part of a meeting.

ARTICLE 1V - OFFICERS

Section 1 - Officers

Unless otherwise provided for in the Certificate of Incorporation, the Board shall elect or
appoint an Executive Director, a Secretary and a Treasurer, and may appoint one or more Vice
Presidents, a Chair of the Board and such other Officers as it may determine, who shall have ;
such duties, powers and functions as hereinafter provided. |
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Section 3 — Term, Removal, Salary

Except as hereinafter provided, officers shall be elected or appointed to hold office until
the next occurring Annual Meeting of the Board, and, subject to this Section 3 of this Article IV,
until their respective successors have been elected or appointed. Any Officer elected or
appointed by the Board may be removed by the Beard with or without cause. In the event of the
death, resignation or removal of an Officer, the Board in its discretion may elect or appoint a
successor to fill the unexpired term, Any two or more offices may be held by the same person,
except the offices of Executive Director and Treasurer, The salaries of all Officers shall be fixed
by the Board, and shall be fixed in compliance with requirements and/or exemptions provided
for in the Code and in the NPCL with respect to remuneration of Officers.

Section 4 - Executive Director

The Executive Director shall have the powers and responsibilities of a chief executive
officer, He or she shall preside at all meetings of the Board. He or she shall have the general
oversight of the affairs of the Corporation and of its officers, employees, and contractors, and
shall see that all resolutions and policies of the Board are carried into effect and observed. He or
she shall be responsible for the management of its operations and shall report to the Board of
Directors.

Section 5 - Vice-Presidenis

During the absence or disability of the Executive Director, the Vice-President, or if there
are more than one, the Executive Vice-President, if there be one, or the Vice President
designated by the Board of Directors, shall have all the powers and functions of the Executive
Director. Each Vice-President shall perform such other duties as the Board shall prescribe.

Section 6 - Treasurer

The Treasurer shall have the care and custody of all the funds and securities of the
Corporation, and shall deposit said funds in the name of the Corporation in such bank or trust
company as the Executive Director may elect. He or she shall, when duly authorized by the
Board of Directors, sign and execute contracts in the name of the Corporation countersigned by
the Executive Director. He or she shall also sign all checks, drafts, notes, and orders for the
payment of money, to the extent authorized by the Board of Directors. He or she shall, at all
reasonable times, and after reasonable notice of a request therefor, exhibit the books and
accounts of the Corporation to any Director at the office of the Corporation during ordinary
business hours.

At the end of each fiscal year, the Treasurer shall prepare, or have prepared, financial

statements of the Corporation, and shall present such financial statements in writing at the Annual
Meeting of the Board, at which time he or she shall also present an annual report setting forth the
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financial condition of the Corporation. He or she shall also prepare, or have prepared, and present
to the members of the Board the Corporation’s annual federal and state tax returns.

Section 8 - Assistant-Treasurer

During the absence or disability of the Treasurer, the Assistant-Treasurer, or if there are
more than one, the one so designated by the Treasurer or the Executive Director, shall have the
powers and functions of the Treasurer.

Section 9 - Secretary

The Secretary shall keep a book containing the minutes of the meetings and actions by
written consent of the Board of Directors. He or she shall atiend to the giving and serving notices
on behalf of the Corporation, and shall have charge of such books and papers as the Board of
Directors may direct. He or she shall attend to such correspondence as may be assigned to him or
her, and perform all the duties incidental to his or her office.

Section 10 - Assistant-Secretaries

During the absence or disability of the Secretary, the Assistant-Secretary, or if there are
more than one, the one so designated by the Secretary or by the Executive Director, shall have all
the powers and functions of the Secretary.

Section 11 - Sureties and Bonds

In case the Board shall so require, any Officer or agent of the Corporation shall execute
to the Corporation a bond in such sum and with such surety or sureties as the Board may direct,
conditioned upon the faithful performance of his or her duties to the Corporation and including
responsibility for negligence and for the accounting for all property, funds or securities of the
Corporation which may come into his or her hands.

ARTICLE V - CONSTRUCTION

If there shall be any conflict between the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation
and these By-Laws, the provisions of the Certificate of Incorporation shall govern.; provided,
however, that in the case of a conflict between the Certificate of Incorporation and a provision of
these By-Laws adopted pursuant to Article VII hereof, the provision of the By-Laws shall
govern.

ARTICLE VI - FISCAL YEAR

Section | - Fiscal Year
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The fiscal year of the Corporation shall, until otherwise changed by the Board, be the
twelve months ending on June 30" of cach year,

ARTICLE VII - AMENDMENTS

Section | -~ Amendments

These By-Laws or any provisions hereof may be amended or repealed by the Board by
vote of a majority of the entire Board of Directors, unless a greater favorable vote is required by
these By-Laws or by law.

Section 2 - Notice

If any By-Law is adopted, amended or repealed by the Board, notice thereof shall be
given to all members of the Board within ten (10) days after such action is taken setting forth the
changes made.

Adopted as of July 1, 2022
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Conflict of Interast Attestation

Respondent must attest It has read, understood and will comply with the following pravisions. ESD shall
have the right to disqualify any raspondent to this RFP or terminate any contract entered Into as a result
of this RFP should ESD determine that the Respondent has violated any of these requirements. Please
read this form and sign below evidencing your agreethent to comply with these provisions.

AI

Glfts and Offers of Employment: Respondent has not and shall not during this procurement
and durlng the negofiation of any contract resulting from this procurement, offer to any
employee, member or director of ESD, any gift, whether in the form of money, services, loan,
travel, entertalnment, haspltality, thing or promise, or In any other form, under circumstances
in which It could reasonably be inferred that the offer was intended to influence sald employee
member or director, or could reasonably be expected to Influence said employee, member of
director, in the performance of the officlal duty of said amployee, member or director or was
Intended as a reward for any offlcial action on the part of said employee, member or director,
Respondent may not make any offers of employment or cliscuss the possibllity of such offers
with any employee, member or director of ESD whe Is Involved In this procurement and/or
resulting contract negotfation within at least 30 days from the time that the employee's
Involverment Inthis matter closed,

I

Disclosure of Potential Conflicts: Respondent shall disclose any existing or contemplated
relationshlp with any other person or entity, Including relationships with any member,
shareholders of 5% or more, parent, subsidiary, or afflliated firm, which would constitute an
actual or potential conflict of Interest or appearance of Impropriety, relating to other
clients/customers/employers of the Respondent or former officers and employees of ESD, in
connection with your rendering services enumerated in this REP. f a conflict does or might
exist, Respandent must describe how it would eliminate or prevent it,

Disclosure of Ethics Investigations: Respondent must disclose whether it, or any of its members,
shareholders of 5% or more, parents, affiliates, or subsidiaries, have been the subject of any
ongolng Investigation or disciplinary actlon by the New York State Commission on Public
Integrity or its predecessor State entities (callectively, “Commission”), and if so, a description
must be Included Indicating how any matter before the Commission was resolved or whether it
remalns unresolved,

Raspondent has read and agrees to the above Conflict of Interest provisions:

A ,f%’;&ww 12/27/2022

Sigmature Date

Seth Bornstein

Name

Executive Director

Title




Proposed
QEDC Board & Executive Committee Meeting Schedule
2023

e Meectings arc held on the 3 Wednesday of the month

o With the exception of the Annual Meeting and Board/Supporter Reception
in June, meetings are virtual.

e Meetings are 9 — 10 AM

January 18 — Annual Meeting
February 15 — Executive Committee
March 15 — Board Meecting

April -19 ~ Executive Committee
May 17 — Board Meeting

June 21 — Board/Supporter Reception
July 19 — Board Meeting

August 16 — Executive Committee
September 20 — Board Meeting
October 18 — Executive Committee
November 15 — Board Mecting

December 20 — Executive Committee







Laét Name .

First Name

Position

Organization
Ms. Anderson Shurn Member Director, Econo| Office of the QY
Mr. Baptiste Omar Member Banker Santander
Mr. Bua James Member Manager IBEW Local 3
Ms. Capune Tracy President Vice President |Kaufrhan Astori
Mr. Crosswell Winston Vice President| Retired H&R Block (ret.
Mr. D'Amico Leonard Member Principal D&F Developm
Mr. Stephen Franklin Member Capital One Bai
Ms. Gianna Frederigue Member VP Marketing |Silverstein Dev
Mr. Levin Stephen Member Principal Webline Design
Mr. Guttman Ben Exec. Committ] Principal Tech Counsults
Ms. Karteran Philippa Member Principal Galleria Noire
Mr. Lucaj Mark Member Counsel Mattone Group
Ms. Noael Verida Secretary Assist. Director | Council for Airp
Mr. Aidan O'Donnell Member PANYNJ
Ms. Rose Veronica Member Principal Aurora Electic
Mr. Singh Bill Member CFO Resorts World |
Ms. Siravastava Anita Treasurer Director Biscuit & Chai
Mr. Walsh Ryan Member Attorney Law Office of R




Address

Town

Class

120-55 Queens Blvd. |Kew Gardens
Union Turnpike Fresh Meadows 2023
158-11 Harry Van Arsd| Flushing 2023
34-12 36 Ave. Astoria 2024
2232 Goodwin Rd. Eimont 2023
100 Schoothouse Rd. |Levittown 2023
1k 2024
100 Greenwich St New York 2024
28-07 Jackson Ave. lLong Island City 2023
5-22 46 Ave, Long Island City 2024
175-15 Adelaide St St. Albans 2024
134-01 20 Ave. College Ft. 2023
80-04 161 St. Jamaica 2023
New York 2023
159-09 146 Ave Jamaica 2024
110-00 Rockaway Blvd| Jamaica 2024
6700 192 St. Fresh Meadows 2024
703 3 Ave. New York 2024




©EDC

Queens Economic Tel 718263 0546 WWW.qUeeHSIV.org
Development Corporation Fav 718 263 0394

120-55 Queens Boulevard, Suite 309
Kew Gardens, NY 11424

Resolution by the QEDC Board of Directors

Annual Meeting, January 18, 2023

Resolved:

The Board of Directors of the Queens Economic Development Corporation (QEDC),
through a resolution passed on January 18, 2023, that the Executive Director, Seth
Bornstein is hereby authorized to sign on behalf of the QEDC legal documents that

required in the application for, and the receipt of, awards from Federal, State, City
agencies and other grant making organizations.

Adopted at the annual Meeting of the Board of Directors of the QEDC

Certified:

Tracy Capune, President



Minutes
QEDC ANNUAL MEETING

November 17, 2021
9:00 AM
Queens Borough Hall — Room 200
(and via ZOOM Conference Call)

Emily Lin, Chair opened the meeting at 9:08 AM

Introcuctions - Board, Staff, Guests

Board Attendees; Shurn Anderson, Omar Baptiste, Christine Callahan, Tracy Capune, Winston Crosswell,
Len I’ Amico, Gianna Frederique, Philippa Karteron, Stephen Levin, Bmily Lin, Verdia Noel, Lawrence
Sokot, Ryan Walgh. Staff & Consultants: Seth Bornstein, Ricardi Calixte, Andrea Ormeno, Bhavana
Punjwani, Erika Campoverde, Josh Mero, Lotetta de Saussure, Michasl Gillen, Rob MacKay, Sam Massol,
Sam Smouha, Sarah Liv, Beny Castro, Kathrine Gregory, Jonathan Forgash, Bill Driscoll

Call to order — Emily Lin.
Minutes - Seth Bornstein noted that the Minutes of 2020 were approved via email shottly after 2020
Annual Meeting
Financial Repott — As Anita Srivastava was en route traveling, Seth Bornstein reviewed the
financials noting the balances and the recent opening a new account where the QUEST
proceeds were placed

Winston Crosswell made a motion to accept the QEDC financials that was seconded by
Stephen Levin, and a motion to accept the Enirepreneur Space budget that was seconded by
Philippa Karternon. Both motions were accepted by the Board,

Borough President Donovan Richatds Jr. gave rerarks noting his support of the organization and his
looking forward to wotking with us on our programs.

Elections — Emily Lin
Motion and vote to re-elect the following for two-year terms expiring 2023:
Omar Baptiste (Vote to also join the Board)
James Bua
Winston Crossweil
Len D*Amico
Stephet Levin
Philippa Karteron
Mark Lucaj
Verdia Noel
Michael Rodin

Motion to vote and elect the Offices for a one-year term expiving 202?:




Tracy Capune, Presidernt

Winston Crosswell, Secretary

Anita Srivastava, Treasurer

Shurn Anderson, BP Representative

Ben Guitmann, (Position to be determined)
Verdia Noel, (Position to be determined)

Motion to continue the follow Committee:

Audit & Finance —~ Chair and Members to be determined

Voting for all positions was done in 4 simultaneous vote. Winston Crosswell made the motion,
Ryan Walsh seconded and the motion was accepted by the Board,

Business ltems — Seth Bornstein reviewed the following:

FY 21 Audit being completed

A review of staff was undertaken by the Executive Director

A review of the Executive Director was undertaken by the Executive Commitiee
The remaining Funds from Hollis proceeds have been invested

Review of Motions for the Board that need fo approved annually

[tems Requiring Motions:

The Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to sign contracts and
agreerments for the Corporation

Motion made by Winston Crosswell, seconded by Shurn Anderson, accepted
by the Boar,

The Board reviews consultant contracts annually (docimenis are available for
Board Member review upon request) Currently we have contracts with:

o The Driscoll Group — Govermiment affairs

o Alan Chan, CPA — Accounting services

o Avaya - Phone equipment

o, Hi Lo Computer — Computer Maintenance/supplies

o Central Business Solutions/Wells Fargo - Cepier

o Unique Building Maintenance — Office cleaning
o Magic Touch — Graffiti removal
o}
[}

Instructors/Business Advisors:-

Tri-Angular (Roy Pellicino) GMMA (Charles Antonucci)/Sports fourneys
{Adrienne Wax)/Malle Haridal/ Edgard Hermandez/ Jin Zhang/Thomas
Farrell

Entreprencur Space:
o Innovation Associates — Incubator Management
o Estate of David Stein - Entrepreneur Space lease !



o Maintenance agreements with various vendors for HVAC, building safety
and equipment repair for the Entrepreneur Space

Motion made by Winston Crosswell, seconded by Shurn Anderson,
accepted by the Board

» The Board reauthorizes that bank and/or investment accounts may be opened with
the approval the Executive Committees, There must be at least two signatoties on
the all accounts including the Executive Director and on membet of the Executive
Committee.

Mation made by Winston Crosswell, seconded by Shurn Anderson
accepted by the Board

»  All checks are to be signed by the Executive Director and shall have a cover note
with the irivoige noting the account, whom payable to, and amount. This will be
available to the Executive Committee on request, In an event that precludes staff
from working in the office and are working remotely the following policy shall be
enacted: banking (deposits/payments) can be done via the banks online
programs. All payments will be approved by the Executive Director and actual
use of the bank online programs shall be done by the Executive Director or their
designee. Members of the Executive Committee shall have access to all online
banking records

Motion made by Winston Crosswell, seconded by Omar Baptiste,
accepted by the Board.

»  Unless otlierwise noted by a Board Member, the Conflict of Interest Forms signed
by each Board Member in 2019 shall remain in effect. New members will be sent
Conflict of Interest Forms fo sign and return

Motion made by Winston Crosswell, seconded by Shurn Anderson,
aceepted by the Board.

2021 Report — Deputy Director Ricardi Calixte presented the Annual Report. Each staff member and
consultant shared highlights of their program.

Presentation - On the occasion of Emity Lin stepping down from 25 yeats of service on the Board she
was awarded special gifts. Seth Bornstein noted her work over years and thanked het

for everything she has done for the QEDC and wished her the best for the future,

Adjournment — Emily Lin thanked everyone and wished them the best for the holidays and closed the
meeting at 10:27

Prepared by Seth Bornstein/Josh Mero



Executive Committee Minutes 2.15.23
Attendance: Winston Crosswell, Shurn Anderson, Seth Bornstein, Tracy Capune, Loretta de Saussure

Call to order: 9:05AM

Financials:
¢ Cash balance in good shape. Over 500K in BOA, reserve is 600K. Still haven't received city
funding.

» E-space has 116K in Capital One account, still in deficit but 2 grants upcoming. Signed new
contract with real estate broker who is more aggressive for the upstairs office,
¢ Dime Bank - only money raised by Jon Forgash.
s Received 500K through SBA, need to work on paperwork.
Financials approved.

Report highlights:

e  Still waiting on CQls from board, need them by end of the month.

¢ HR Bi-laws — Tom Farrell updated HR policy; very flexible.

e Grants for next year — met with elected officials, asking 500k from senate and 500K from
assembly {general support to cover programs).

& NYC discretionary grants due next Tuesday, powered through all the applications over the
weekend. Asked for speaker/initiative/council member funds. Asked speaker to spearhead
money for Queens Together; Hoping to meet the electeds within the next couple months.

¢ Small grant from Signature Bank? Only 2K, :

s Night market has taken off, great for small local businesses — will take an admin fee for event.

o« Queens taste — still some issues around COVID, but we're offering stipend for encouragement.
Want to better curate vendors. Event is on May 16, sponsorship forms have already been sent
out. Getting good response. loan will still be in control this year.

s Queens Tech Challenge — great job so far, 192 clients registered; had half that last year. 20
classes, 3 events so far. March 29% will be the finalist announcements, going to honor local
woman Vivian Cooke for women’s history month — refreshments will be available.

Business services:
e EAC - Bhavna working on massive grant (500K); we’re one of the few EACs applying. Set for a
vear but will probably be extended.
s Queens Together — Jon Forgash doing well but a few issues, will keep Tracy in the loop.
¢ Eats in Queens is doing great, over 100 restaurants for March and working closely with Rob.
¢ E-space — had to purchase expensive equipment and was told to apply for funds — will see what
they can do.
» Seth Bornstein out 2/27-3/13; executive committee approved Bhavna having power to sign in
his absence - will keep Tracy in the loop. Will have out of office on email with note to contact
Michael/Josh.

Victor Hunt would like to join the board, take a look at the link | sent?

Meeting adjourned: 9:33am



Executive Committee Minutes 2.15.23

Attendance: Winston Crosswell, Shurn Anderson, Seth Bornstein, Tracy Capune, Loretta de Saussure

Call to order: 9:05AM

Seth apologized for not providing a written Executive Director’'s Report

Financials:

Cash balance in good shape. Over 500K in BOA, reserve is 600K. Still haven’t received city
funding.

E-space has 116K in Capital One account, still in deficit but 2 grants upcoming. Signed new
contract with real estate broker who is more aggressive for the upstairs office.

Dime Bank — only money raised by Jon Forgash.

Received 500K through SBA, need to work on paperwork.

Financials approved.

Report highlights:

Still waiting on COls from board, need them by end of the month.

HR Bi-laws = Tom Farrell updated HR policy; very flexible.

Grants for next year — met with elected officials, asking 500k from senate and 500K from
assembly (general support to cover programs).

NYC discretionary grants due next Tuesday, powered through all the appllcatlons over the
weekend. Asked for speaker/initiative/council member funds. Asked speaker to spearhead
money for Queens Together; Hoping to meet the electeds within the next couple months.
Small grant from Signature Bank? Only 2K.

Night market has taken off, great for small local businesses — will take an admin fee for event.
Queens taste — still some issues around COVID, but we’re offering stipend for encouragement.
Want to better curate vendors. Event is on May 16", sponsorship forms have already been sent
out, Getting good response. Joan will still be in control this year,

Queens Tech Challenge — great job so far, 192 clients registered; had haif that last year. 20
classes, 3 events so far. March 29" will be the finalist announcements, going to honor local
woman Vivian Cooke for women’s history month — refreshments will be available.

Business services:

EAC - Bhavna working on massive grant {500K); we’re one of the few EACs applying. Set for a
year but will probably be extended.

Queens Together —Jon Forgash doing well but a few issues, will keep Tracy in the loop.

Eais in Queens is doing great, over 100 restaurants for March and working closely with Rob.
E-space — had to purchase expensive equipment and was told to apply for funds — will see what
they can do.

Seth Bornstein out 2/27-3/13; executive committee approved Bhavna having power to sign in

his absence — will keep Tracy in the Ioop Wwill have out of office on email with note to contact
Michael/Josh.

Victor Hunt would like to join the board, take a loak at the link | sent?




Meeting adjourned: 9:33am



Executive Director Report
March 15, 2023

Administrative

As there have been no comments on the updated HR policies and by-laws, we will
officially vote on them.
All Conflict of Interest forms have been received
Audit due by end of March
All SBS reports and financials are in for 7/1/22 — 12/31/22
We were able to receive all reimbursements owned to us from Market NY — we will have
one more reimbursement package ready by June
Completed applying for FY24 NYC discretionary grants
Met with members of the NYS delegation and spoke at their hearing requesting inclusion
in the FY24 NYS budget.
We will vote in Victor Hunt to join our board. He was a 2018 Start UP winner.
o https://vhunt.notion.site/Victor-Hunt-bio-dad5372056bb4ad9a1568b7bf687¢254
Grants/contracts received:
© Reimagine NY from NYS - $513K
© SBA - $500K for Queens Together
© Flagstar Bank (NY Community Bank) - $20K
© NY Community Bank Foundation - $4K
Other prospects:
o NYS Tourism
© Richmond County for Espace
© Santander Bank
We are a pass through from various funders for the QBP’s State of the Borough

Queens Taste

Scheduled for May 16 — soliciting sponsors and restaurants
© Need ramp up sponsorships and promote. Sponsors thus far:
= Kaufman Studio - $10K
= Citizens Bank - $9K
» Flagstar Bank - $5K
» Mattone Development - $3000
= Plaxall - $2500

Queens Tech + Innovation Challenge

45 applications being reviewed in round one
March 9 (@ 6 @ MMI — Finalists announcements
April 24 all day presentations @ RWNYC - @ 6 PM Winner announcements

Business Services

Women’s Business Center
o Online classes in English & Spanish



o Will commemorate Women’s History Month @ MMI March 29 event
o EAC/NYS programs
o Commencing ‘Reimagine NY” grant -virtual training for 500 state-wide
o Commencing a cohort of Prime Skills March 16 with Project Hope (home based
business training) with 25 clients held at Nexus, Jamaica
+ HICT

o Completed English, Spanish and Chinese classes one is coming up this weekend

Queens Together
¢ Processing documents for $250K HUD grant
* Processing document for $500 SBA grant
e Eats in Queens Restaurant Month March 1-31. 185 restaurants enrolled

Espace
* Signed new realtor for second floor

o Prepared documents for $100K in state funds to cover deficit (in addition to the annual
$125K grant)



Queens Economic Development Corporation

Cash balance as of end of month:

QEDC

Bank of America

Bank of America - new account
Investments

- Dime CD

- TD Bank - investment # 1

- TD Bank - investment # 2

- Santander money market

ESPACE
Capital One

QUEENS TOGETHER
Dime Bank

TOTAL

100,000
294,332
300,000
100,578

February 2023

265,973
201,099

794,910

Funds borrowed for day to day operations through:

Funds spent
Less - funds received
Funds borrowed from reserve

1,261,982

101,047

35,999

1,399,029

February 2023

1,130,047
(644,765)

485,282
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Queens Economic Development Corporation
Board Meeting Minutes
March 15, 2023

Attendance: Shurn Anderson, Omar Baptiste, Jim Bua, Winston Crosswell, Gianna Frederique,
Ben Guttmann, Victor Hunt, Phillipa Karteron, Stephen Levin, Mark Lucaj, Verdia Noel, Aidan
O’Donnell, Anita Srivastava, Ryan Walsh; Staff: Seth Bornstein, Josh Mero

Call to Order: 9:02am

Financial report

QEDC financials are stable ($1,261,982). We gave substantial funds in reserve.
E-Space has $100K in account. There will be two grants totaling $225K that will cover
the deficit.

Queens Together has $36K in Dime Bank from local fundraising that is used primarily
for food relief. We are working with HUD {0 access the $250K and are filing the
documents for the $500K.

As we are growing the Executive Director asked if any member would be interested in
serving on a financial committee to review our reserve accounts that total $600K.

Vote to approve budget - Unanimously approved

The board unanimously approved the updated Human Resource Policy and updated By-
laws. They are now in effect.
The audit should be completed in two weeks and will be sent to the board to review and
approve.
We have begun secking support for FY24 City and State funding from elected officials.
The board unanimously approved and welcomed Victor Hunt, a former client, to join the
board.
Grants received:

o $500K from SBA for Queens Together

o $513K from NYS for virtual business education

o $25k from Flagstar (NY Community Bank

¢ $4K NY Community Bank Foundation.
Prospective grants in process from NYS for tourism and Richmond County Savings Bank
for Espace,
Queens Taste is on 5/16 and we are seeking sponsors and restaurants.
Queens Tech & Innovation Challenge - 44 applications being reviewed for round 1.
March 29" is the finalist announcement at Museum of Moving Image; April 24" will be
all day presentations with winner announcements that evening (all Board members
invited to both events) at Resorts World NYC.
WBC — March 30" is the Regional Women’s History Month program
Prime Skills — 8 week class for low/moderate income client commences March 16" at
Nexus, Jamaica; Reimagine NY kicks off next month,
Completed HICT classes in English and Spanish; Chinese class is March 18.




» Eats in Queens restaurant month commenced March 1 and has 200 participating
restaurants.
o Espace working with Fortune Society for food sector job training
o Still seeking second floor tenant.
o Ryan Walsh discussed a DOT plan to close Austin St. to traffic and thereby hurting local
businesses. QEDC to obtain and review proposal.

Adjourned: 9:31




Executive Director Report
April 19, 2023

Administrative
» Theupdated HR policies and by-laws have been adopted
» The Audit and 990 have been adopted and will be E-filed by our auditor
o All 8BS reports and financials are in for 7/1/22 ~ 3/30/23, though only two contracts have

been registered, precluding vs from receiving funds from the majority of our SBS
contracts ' '

o  We are waiting for the NY State budget to be finalized - we will learn if we received any
funding,

e Applying for Mackenzie Scott $ 1M grant

Queens Taste
» Scheduled for May 16 — soliciting sponsors and restaurants
o Sponsors thus far:

KAS 10000 - invoiced
Plaxall 2500 - received
Mattone 3000 - received
NYCB 5000 - received (embedded in grant of 25000)
Citizens 7700 — applied (part of pass thru for Queens Night Market)
RWNYC - 5000 - invoiced
PANYNJ ~ 5000 - invoiced
% Driscoll - 2000 — invoiced
o 25 restavrants thus far
»  Need Board to market

Queens Tech + Innovation Challenge
» 45 application were reviewed in round one
e Announced 15 finalists 3/29
»  Announcing 5 winners 4/24 @ RWNYC - Board invited

Business Sérvices
¢ Women’s Business Certter
o Online classes in English & Spanish
o Commemorated Women's History Month at 4/29 event and regional event 4/31 M

v EAC/NYS programs
o Commencing ‘Reimagine NY’ grant -virtual training for 500 state-wide
o Commencing a cohort of Prime Skills March 16 with Project Hope (hore based
business training) with 25 clients held at Nexus, Jamaica
e HICT
o Completed English, Spanish and Chinese classes




Queens Together .
¢ Processing documents for $250K HUD grant
¢ Processing document for $500 SBA grant
» Eats in Queens Restaurant Month was in March 1-31. 200 restaurants enrolled
o Doing survey to find out results/feedback

Espace
o Still seeking tenants for second floor
o Water damage repairs almost completed
e Prepared documents for $100K in state funds to cover deficit (in addition to the annual
$125K grant)



Queens Economic Development Corporation

Cash balance as of end of month:

QEDC

Bank of America

Bank of America - new account
Investments

- Dime CD

- TD Bank - investment # 1

- TD Bank - investment # 2

- Santander money market

ESPACE
Capital One

QUEENS TOGETHER
Dime Bank

TOTAL

100,000
294,332
300,000
100,578

March 2023

265,425
134,179

794,910

Funds borrowed for day to day operations through:

Funds spent

Less - funds received
Funds borrowed from reserve

1,194,514

95,780

48,350

1,338,644

March 2023

1,259,487
(696,715)

962,772
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Executive Director Report
Muay 17, 2023

Administrative

.« & & &

The Audit and 990 have been E-filed by our auditor
All SBS reports and financials are in for 7/1/22 - 3/30/23. Contracts have been registered
and refnibursements have been coming in.
o The actual amounts in our Bank of America accounts as of May 15 are:
n $655K. in 1683 (our day-to-day account)
»  $271K in 6024 (our “pass thru™ aceount)
We received $100K in the NY State budget (Sen, Comrie), and are waiting on post-
budget items in the Agsembly
Received $250K Tourism grant from NYS
We are applying for FY24 grants through NYC SBS
Applying for Mackenzie Scott $1M grant
Proposed two programs (Food business training and HIC) to NY Housing Authority

Queens Taste

May 16
o Sponsors as May 15

KAS

Plaxalt

Mattone
NYCB/Flagstar
Citizens
RWNYC
PANYNJ
Silversup Studios
Driscoll Group
Dé&F Group
Bkyview

o 20+ restavrants to participate

Queens Tech + [nnovation Challenge

L]

.

Announeed 5 winners 4/24 @ RWNYC

o Disbursing first installment of $10K to winners this week

Planning FY24 program with the BP

Business Services

Women’s Business Center
o Online classes in English & Spanish
Completed rmidyear report




o  EAC/NYS programs
o Commenced TEES Program grant -virtual training for 500 state-wide
o Commenced Prime Skills with Project Hope (home based business training) with
25 clients held at Nexus, Jamaica
o Commencing Ready for Business with Emerald Isle Immigrant Conncil
« HICT
o Complefed English, Spanish and Chinese classes — adding two more in June

Queens Together
¢ Processing documents for $250K HUD grant
Jonathan Forgash revising $500K SBA grant
Centinue to provide food relief to pantries
Working with Fortune Society to place trained students with local restaurants
Eats in Queens Restaurant Month was in March 1-31. 200 restaurants enrolled
o Doing survey to find out results/feedback

* & » B

Espace
v Still seeking tenants for second floor
»  Water damage repairs almost completed
v Prepared documents for $175K in state funds to cover deficit (in addition to the annual
$I28K grant)



Queens Economic Development Corporation

Cash balance as of end of month: April 2023
QEDC
Bank of America -1683 266,945
Bank of America - 6024 120,458
Investments
- Dime CD 100,000
- TD Bank - investment # 1 204,332
- TD Bank - investment # 2 300,000
- Santander money market 100,578 794,910
1,182,313
ESPACE
Capital One 64,201
QUEENS TOGETHER
Dime Bank 48,245
TOTAL 1,294,759
Funds borrowed for day to day operations through: April 2023
Funds spent 1,454,525
Less - funds received (904,347)

Funds borrowed from reserve 550,178
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QEDC Board Meeting Minutes 5,17.23

Attendance: Winston Crosswell, Stephen Franklin, Ben Guttmann, Victor Hunt, Stephen Levin,
Mark Lucaj, Verdia Noel

Staff: Seth Bornstein, Loretta de Saussure, Rob MacKay, Josh Mero
Call to order: Winston Crosswell opened the meeting at 9:05am

Financials:

» Though the financials reflect low balances through April, funds from SBS were
reimbursed in May so we have approximately $655K in our day-to-day account and
$271K in our pass-through account (funds received on behalf of other organizations).
We will be receiving a $250K grant from NYS for tourism

e  Applying to other grants:

© Mackenzie Scott grant.

© NYCHA asked to develop training programs for food service and a special HICT
course.

E-Space: Funds low but we are receiving three grants of $125K, $100K, and $75K that should
cover almost all the deficit. We need more public sector support though.

Queens Taste: Queens Taste was last night, Funds were raised but we don’t have an exact
amount yet. Rob MacKay reported there were about 250 guests, and the event went smoothly.

QTIC:
¢ Three winners will receive the checks today; two more will receive theirs on Friday.
©  Awards are two $10K grants. Clients have to complete milestones to receive the
second half

0  Working with DBP Ebony Young and staft in planning the FY 24 QTIC

WBC: English/Spanish virtual classes, completed midyear report.

EAC: TEES program happening — virtual training topics.

Prime Skills: 23 participants will graduate May 25.

Ready for Business: 20 participants enrolled in this advanced ESL to help start businesses.

HICT: Two more classes are being held in June

Queens Together: Processing docs for $250K HUD grant, revising $500K SBA grant.

Continuing food relief for pantries.

Meeting closed: 9:24AM




Executive Director Report
June 21, 2023

Administrative

e Wereceived $100K in the NY State budget (Sen. Comric), and are waiting on post-
budget items in the Assembly — including a verbal commitment for $75K from
Assemblywoman Cook

$250K Tourism grant from NYS forthcoming later this summer

$350K in applications to NYC for FY24 pending — budget will be ready by of the month
Applied to the Mackenzie Scott Foundation for a $1M grant (highly competitive)

Hosted a successful “listening session” for the Undersecretary from the Dep. of
Commerce

Queens Taste

e May 16 at NY Sci. We had 500+ in attendance. Thirty restaurants/beverage suppliers
participated. The event went well and we raised approximately $30K after expenses

Queens Tech + Innovation Challenge
e Announced 5 winners 4/24 @ RWNYC
o We disbursed the first installment of $10K to each winners
e Planning FY24 program with the BP

Business Services
*  Women’s Business Center
o Online classes in English & Spanish
o Completed midyear report
o Planning for the national conference in July in Washington
Completed midyear report

o EAC/NYS programs
o Commenced TEES Program grant -virtual training for 500 state-wide
* (Classes going well with good attendance
o Completed Prime Skills with Project Hope (home based business training) with
25 clients; considering a fall class depending on funding
o Completing Ready for Business with Emerald Isle Immigrant Council June 22
with 20 clients, We may be funded by Assemblywoman Cruz to continue it next
year.
» HICT
o Completed 2 English, 1 Spanish and 1 Chinese classes — final Spanish class is the
weekend of June 24

Queens Together

o Planning to “spin off” Queens Together as a separate nonprofit - this will take time as the
QEDC is the signer of their 2 major grants.




¢ Processing documents for $250K HUD grant

¢ Processing documents for $500K SBA grant

e Continue to provide food relief to pantries

o Working with Fortune Society to place trained students with local restaurants
Espace

o Still secking tenants for second floor
o  Water damage repairs completed

o Prepared documents for $175K in state funds to cover deficit (in addition to the annual
$125K grant)




Queens Economic Development Corporation

Cash balance as of end of month:

QEDC

Bank of America

Bank of America - new account
Investments

- Dime CD

- TD Bank - investment # 1

- TD Bank - investment # 2

- Santander money market

ESPACE
Capital One

QUEENS TOGETHER

Dime Bank

TOTAL

100,000
294,332
300,000
100,578

May 2023

568,799
264,480

794,910

Funds borrowed for day to day operations through:

Funds spent
Less - funds received
Funds borrowed from reserve

1,628,189

133,009

35,636

1,796,834

May 2023

1,674,519
(1,680,293)

(5,774)
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QEDC
Executive Committee Minutes
June 21, 2023

Attendance: Shurn Anderson, Tracy Capune, Winston Crosswell, Verdia Noel, Anita Srivastava,
Staff: Seth Bornstein, Loretta de Saussure, Josh Mero

Call to order: 2:03AM

Financials:

¢ Most funds have already been received for this year, though we are still waiting on a few
reimbursements. There is a healthy reserve of approximately $800K. _

¢ There are two Bank of America accounts: one is used for day-to~day transactions; and the
other is for pass-through transactions,

¢ Entrepreneur Space is in deficit, but we will raise funds to cover it. We need to seek
additional support - possibly reaching out to NYC EDC.

¢ The Dime Bank is only for food relief funds.

Motion to approve — Tracy, Winston/Verdia seconded

Administrative:

$100K from Sen. Comrie.

$250K Tourism grant upcoming, Rob MacKay to work on
$350K in applications for FY24 from NYC (pending)
Submitted application to Mackenzie Scott Foundation ($1M)

Queens Taste — We had approximately 500+ attendees, 30 restaurants and netted $30K.

Networking Event — Planning an August event at Queens Theater with a book discussion and
local businesses: bookshop, gourmet food shop, wine shop we have helped.

QTIC — gave 1% half of money to winners, they’ll get second half in 6 months, Planning FY 24
with BP

WBC -- Reports completed; Andrea and Seth to attend annual meeting in Washington end of
July.

TEES —Completed the second course last night (Marketing Manual}.
Prime Skills — Ended in May for home-based business training,
Ready for Business — Completing June 22 with Emerald Isle Immigrant Council

HICT — The final class completes this weekend.




Queens Together — Planning to spin off as a separate organization after HUD and SBA funds are
expended. They will QEDC partners rather than a division,

Staffing — In FY’24 there will be some changes in titles and responsibilities. Additionally, we
will seek a consultant to assist with a strategic plan as we think about the future,

Meeting closed: 9:38AM
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Frank Tramontano, Certified Public Accountant
457 - 80" Street
Brooklyn, N.Y, 11209

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Queens Economic Development Corporation

Opinion

[ have audited the financial staternents of Queens Economic Development Corporation { a
not-for-profit corporation), which comprise the statement of financial position as of June
30, 2022 and the related statements of activity, functional expenses, and cash flows for
the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. In my epinion, the
financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Queens Eeonomic Development Corporation as of June 30, 2022 and the results of its
operation and its cash flow for the year then ended in accordance with aceounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted nmiy audit in accordance with auditing standards generally aceepted in the
United States of America (GAAS). My responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of my repert, [ am requiréd to be independent of Queens Economic Development
Caorporation and to meet my other ethjcal responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to my audit, I believe that the audil evidence I have obtained
is suflicient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion,

Responsibilities of Manageurent for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the finaneijal
statements in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal confrol relevant 1o the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to frand or error. In preparing the financial staterments, management is
required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggrepate,
that raise substantial doubt about Queens Economic Development Corporation’s ability to
continue as a going cancern for one year from the date the financial statements are. issued.

1



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objective is to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fiaud or eiror, and to issue
an auditor’s report that jncludes my opinion. Reasonable assurarce is a high level of
assurance but not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit
condugted in aceordance with GAAS will always detect & material misstatement when it
exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatenent resulting from fraud is higher
than for ene resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control., Misstatements are
consicdlered material if, individually or in the apgregate, they could reasonably be
expected fo influence the economic decisions of users made on the basis of these
[inancial statements, In preforming the audit in accordance with GAAS, ]

» Dxetcise profession judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit,

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,

whether due to fravd or etror, and design and perform audit procedures

responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a (est basis,
evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statenments,

Obtain an understanding of internal conirol relevant to the audit in order to desi gn

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, byt not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Queens Economic Development

Corporation’s internal contral, Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness

of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the

overall presentation of the financial statements.

Conelude whether, in my judgement, there are conditions or events, considered in

the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about Queens Economic Development

Corpotation’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of

time.

* 1 am required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other malters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit
findings, and certain internal control-related matters that T have identified during
the audit.

March 28, 2023 /-»/ 4



QUEENS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalent $ 1,385,206
Due from government agencies — Note 3 831,457
Other Receivables 57,225

Other Assets

14,855
Prepaid Expenses

2,073

$ 2,290,816

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS  $ 2290816

Leasehold Improvements and Equipment

Leasehold Iimprovements 9,070
Equipment and Fixtures 134,727
Less: accumulated depreciation (68,060)

75,737

TOTAL ASSETS § 2,366,553

LIABILITIES
Accounty Payable $ 44,493
Securities Payable 73,991
Salaries Payable 10,765
$ 129,249
TOTAL LIABILITIES  $__129.249

NET ASSETS
Unrestrieted ' $2,237,304

TOTAL NET ASSETS  $2,237.304

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS  $.2,366,553

See accompanying notes fo financial statements.




QUEENS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Publie Support and Revenue
Government grants

Grants and contributions

Program Revenue and Fees — Note 5
In-Kind Offiee Donation

Interest and Other Income

‘Total Public Support and Revenue

Expenses
Program services
Business services
Training
Neighborhood economie development

Total program services

Support Services
Administrative and general
Fundraiging

Total support services
Total expenses
Change in net assets
Net assels beginning of year

Net assets at end of year

See accompanying notes to financial statements,

Unrestricted

$ 1,529,323
477,245
565,368

40,000
24,231

$ 2636167
1,679,434

335,887
223.924

2.239.245

254,533
100,337

354,870
2.594.115
42,052

2.193.252

§ 2237304

Total

1,529,323
477,245
565,368

40,000
24.231

2.636.167

1,679,434
335,887
223924

2,239,245

254,533
100.337

354,870
2.594.115
42,052
2.195.252

2.237.304



Satary §
Payroll taxes and fringes
Total Payroll and fringes

Telephone and on-line
Postage and Shipping

Office Suppiies

Rent- E SpaceMIQ
Equipment Lease

Facifity Maintenahce
Printing, Job ads,staff devrlopment
Depreciation

Utiilities
MeetingsMVorkshops/Events
Contract/Consulfing
Consultant E-Space
Marketing and Printing
Consultanilobbying

Payroll Service

Insurance

Travel

AccountingfAudit
Subscription, fees and dues
Program Expense {start up)
In-Kind Office Donation
Miscellaneous

Total 3

QUEENS ECONOMIC BEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES
FOR YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2022

PROGRAM SERVICES SUPPORTING SERVICES

: Neighborhood Program and

Business Economic Administrative Supporiing

Services Training Development  Total and general Fundraising  Tofal Serviges

793,466 158,693 105,796 1,057,955 89,020 39,080 138,100 1,196,055
127.632 25,408 16,937 169,375 15,853 8,257 22,110 191,485
920,488 184,089 122,733 1,227,330 114,873 45,337 160,210 1,387,540
19,113 3,823 2,548 25,484 2,831 ¢ 2,831 28,315
1,015 203 136 1,354 338 a 338 1,692
15,748 3,150 2,098 20,897 1,105 i 1,105 22,102
169,519 33,804 22,8602 228,025 0 0 0 226,025
55,222 11.044 7.3683 735629 3,875 it 3,875 77,504
28,498 5,699 3,800 37,897 0 0 o 37,997
G 0 0 0 47 0 147 147
16,410 3,282 2,188 21,880 H 0 i 21,880
52,465 10,483 5,995 65,8953 Y 0 0 69,953
43,440 8,688 5792 57,920 H 0 0 47,820
127,567 25,514 17,009 170,090 a 0 0 170,090
40,837 8,168 5,445 54,450 8,050 0 5,050 60,500
46,871 9,374 8,250 62,495 0 g 0 62,485
0 0 0 0 0 55,000 55,060 55,000
G o 0 0 7,132 0 7,132 7,132
6,481 1,296 864 8,841 8,642 0 8,642 17,283
511 102 68 881 76 0 75 757
0 o 0 i 59,366 0] 58,300 58,300
8,516 1,303 869 g,688 8,688 g 8,689 17,377
128,723 25,745 17,163 171,831 o o 0 171,631
o o 0 0 43,000 g 40,000 43,000
o 0 0 0 1,475 0 1,475 1475
1,679,434 335,887 223,924 2,239,245 254,533 100,337 354,870 2,594 115

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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QUEENS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Increase in net assets h) 42,052
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net
cash used in operating activities:

Increase in due from government agencies (80,088)
Inerease in other receivable (105,606)
Iiicrease in Fixed Assets (11,117)
Increase in accounts payables 20,791
Decrease in Security Payables {9,347)
Increase in Salary Payable 10,765
[nerease in Prepaid Expenses (2,073)
Net cash decreased from operations (134,623)
BEGINNING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,519,829
ENDING CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS $ 1385206

See acconpanying notes to financial statements,



Note 1

Note 2

QUEENS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022

Organization.

Queens Economic Development Corporation (QEDC) was
established in 1976 as a not-for-profit corporation to carry out
economic development planning and promote projects and other
economie activities for public objectives in Queens County in the
State of New York. '

QEDC is exempt from federal inceme tax under Section 501 (¢)
(3) of the Internal Revenue Code and similar provisions of the
State code.

Summary of stgnificant accounting policies
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the
accrual basis of accounting,

Support

All contributions are considered to be available for umrestricted use
unless speeifically restricted by the donor. Contributions received
aiid unconditional promises to give are measured at their fair value
and are reporied as an inerease in net assets. QEDC reports gifts of
cash and other net assets as restricted support if they are received
with danor stipulations that limit the use of donated assets; or if
they are designated for future periods. When a donor restriction
expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished, teniporarily restricted net assets are
transferred to unrestricted net assets and reported in the statement
of activities as net assets released from restrictions. QEDC has no
restricted assets.

Cash and cash equivalent

Cash and cash equivalent consist of cash held in ¢checking, money
market and term depesits, These accounts are maintained at five
major financial institutions. Management believes QEDC is not
exposed to any significant credit risk on cash and cash equivalent,

Fixed assets
Acquisitions of fixed assets are capitalized and depreciated using
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.




Note 2

Notz 3

Note 4

Note 5

QUEENS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022

Summary of significant accounting polieies (continued
Equipment purchased with government-finded grants ave charged as
expense and included in the statement of activities and functional expenses
in accordance with the provisions of grant agreements, Those equipment
are properties of the funding agencies and retained by QEDC for the
performance of QEDC’s program or related activities,

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted acconnting principles requires management fo make estimates
and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures.
Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates,

Dug ffom government agencies
As of lune 2022, due fiom government agencies consisted of the
following:

NYS Economic Developnent Corporation 346,648
U8 Small Business Administration 191,240
NYC Dept. of Youth and Community Development 162,780
NYC Small Business Administration 79,391
NYC Council -CWE pass through 18,897
Total $ _831.457

Program Revenue

In 2010 QEDC started a new program {o spur economic
development among cooking entreprenews. Operating as a
disregarded entity, The Enirepreneur Space provides a professional
commercial kitchen for rent on an as needed basis to aspiring
caterers, bakers, candy and condiment makers and others. The
Incubator also provides business counseling and office space
rental, Operating revenue from its operations was $552,137 in
2022

In-kind contributions

Since 1997, QEDC moved into an office space provided by the
Queens Borough President’s Office. The office space plus
maintenance, and utilities were being provided without charge.
Total occupancy cost was estimated at $40,000 per year.




Note 6

Note 7

Note 8

QUEENS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022

Functional allocation of expense

The costs of providing QEDC services have been summarized on a
functional basis in the Stalement of Functional Expenses.
Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the
progranis.

Contingencies :

All government grants are subject to audit by funding agencies. No
provisien has been made for any liabilities which may atise from
such audit since the amount, if any, ¢an not be determined at this
date, Disallowances or adjustments, if any, will be reflected in the
Tinancial statements in the year of settlement.

Concentiation

QEDC receives fonding from various government agencies under
confract grant agréements subject to renewal on a year to year
basis. For the year ended June 30, 2022 59% of the funding was
from such contracts,
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QEDC 2023

REINVENTION - WHETHER BY CHOICE OR NECESSITY -

is something we do regularly. The last three years have been
chock full of reinvention: for ourselves; our organizations;
and our city. In March, we will mark three years since
everything changed. Like most of the world around us,

we thought the Covid pandemic would be a temporary
interruption in our lives. Wrong! It ripped everything apart
in ways we could never have imagined. And by necessity, we
reinvented so much, personally and professionally.

As the Queens Economic Development Corporation enters
its 46th year, | look back and note how our organization has
constantly reinvented itself. Founded in 1977 to revitalize
neighborhoods, it was clear by the early 1980s that those
neighborhoods could only be revitalized with support for
the small businesses that were the microeconomies of
their communities. To that end, we shifted and reinvented
ourselves. Emphasis was placed on building stronger small businesses, which still compose the
greatest part of our workforce.

Responding to changes in the borough’s small business world has its challenges, and
we've adapted, changed, and rethought how to better serve our clients. While neighborhood
development and business counseling will remain core parts of our activities, we've added
new programs over the years. In addition to the Entrepreneur Assistance Center and Women’s
Business Center, our portfolio has grown to encompass the Queens Tourism Council, the
Entrepreneur Space Kitchen Incubator, Home Improvement Contractor Training, MWBE
certification assistance, and Made in Queens. Most recently, we expanded our business
competition, now known as the “Queens Tech + Innovation Challenge,” that will award
$20,000 each to five businesses that demonstrate viable ways to reinvent technology, food and
community service. Another new addition, Queens Together, serves local restaurants and food
businesses that are the “dining rooms” of our neighborhoods.

This year’s annual report profiles a few of the businesses we assisted as they reinvented
themselves. In doing so, they have contributed to the local economy through added revenue,
tax dollars, and jobs. They’re great stories. One involves two teachers who knew there was a
better way to help children explore their artistic talent. Another is about a mother who wanted
to help her sons do their best in a new environment. Others include a young man who found
a way to give back to his community through sharing great food, a woman who - inspired by
her grandmother - embarked on a new career, and a married couple that proved that pizza
cupcakes can be tasty without being messy!

QEDC might not make headlines that go viral, but it makes a difference in the lives of clients.
| am proud of what we do and the staff that does it. | look forward to continuous reinvention.

Sincerely,
SETH BORNSTEIN
Executive Director

2 2023 QUEENS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION QUEENSNY.ORG
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PROGRAMS

Business Counseling is the core of all our programs. Clients can book
appointments with our Advisory Business Consultants and receive
individual assistance to help them start or grow their small business-
es. Our consultants have backgrounds in planning, finance, market-
ing, operations, legal issues, social media, and
food businesses. The counseling is free with a
limit of four sessions per client. All appoint-
ments are virtual.

Entrepreneur Assistance Center offers hands-
on training targeted to new and existing
business owners. The primary goal is that
participants complete a fully vetted business
plan. Those who complete the eight-week,
60-hour program -- offered annually in
October -- are automatically entered into
the Queens Tech + Innovation Challenge
and EAC Alumni Network, which serves as

a support system and avenue for business
development.

Entrepreneur Space is a 24/7 commercial
kitchen in Long Island City for entry level
food businesses seeking to bring their
operations to the next level. It provides
legal, reasonably priced facilities to make
products while relieving new “foodpreneurs”
of the burden of high start-up producticn
and rental costs. In addition, the
Entrepreneur Space offers access to business
counseling, technical assistance, networking
opportunities, marketing, and shared office
space cubicles.

NEW YORK
STATE OF
OPPORTUNITY.

A Division of Empire State Development

Home Improvement Contractor Training is
an online, three-day course for individuals
seeking toobtain NYC Department of
Consumer Affairs Llicenses for their home
improvement contractor businesses. The
lessons are accompanied by one-on-one
advisory services, such as consultations on

permits and licensing, business development,
procurement, and access to capital.

M /WBE Certification helps eligible,
minority-owned businesses sell products and
services to New York City and New York State
agencies, Monthly orientation seminars teach
how to become certified and offer step-by-

Women’s Business Center

E ENTREPRENEUR
= SPACE
?j HOME TO FOODMAKERS

Entrepreneurship
Assistance Centers

FEDC

Queens Econamic
Development Carparatian

Queens Tech +
innovation Challenge

UEENS

step introductions on selling to government agencies.

Made in Queens is a brand and a certification promoting locally
made or designed products. MiQ’s mission is to promote makers
and help them sell their goods enline and at retail locations,
especially pop-up markets. MiQ helps local
makers and manufacturers share their stories
while growing and flourishing.

Queens Tech + Innovation Challenge is a
signature program offered in cooperation
with the Queens Borough President’s Office.
It provides entrepreneurship education,
one-on-one start-up assistance, mentoring,
and up to $20,000 in seed funding. The
program’s mission is to drive innovation
through entrepreneurship in the most
diverse borough in the world. QEDC believes
that inclusion is an economic imperative
and entrepreneurship should be open to
everyone, regardless of gender, race or birth.

Queens Together improves the health

and vitality of restaurants and other food
businesses in the borough. The program
empowers owners with resources for best
business practices, advocacy with city
agencies, and introductions to officials. It
also sponsors promotional programs and
partnerships with community organizations
to alleviate food insecurity.

Queens Tourism Council uses the “It’s In
Queens!” brand to promote attractions in
the county through organized efforts by
local businesses, cultural institutions, and
government agencies. QTC fosters economic
opportunities, travel, and tourism by letting
visitors and residents know about the great
places to visit, eat, play, and stay.

Women’s Business Center helps women
start and grow businesses and connects
them to resources within their communities.
WBC focuses on one-on-one counseling,
specialized workshops, and networking
opportunities which include the Power
Networking Series and the Women’s History
Month Celebration. W

TOGETHER

QUEENS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
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Getting
creative

Queens has many pockets of creativity. One of the newest is in

a sparkling renovated storefront at 43-67 11th St. in Long Island
City. Art Strong, a community arts-education company, opened
there in 2021. Ashley Cavadas and Hannah Lokken met as students
at Columbia University’s Teachers College and went on to work

in the New York City public school system. As teachers, they
helped students discover their
creativity. In doing so, they
realized the need for enhanced
art programs for young

people. They also noticed the
population growth in Western
Queens, especially Long Island
City, due to an influx of families.

Transforming their art
education into a business was a challenge. They learned of QEDC’s
StartUP! business competition in 2017. Their goal was to win, but
were pleasantly surprised by how much they learned. In 2018,
they took QEDC’s classes in business operation, finance, planning,
and marketing and met with business advisors to develop a
comprehensive plan for the competition. Though they didn’t win,
they received valuable feedback from judges and instructors that

“They realized the need
for enhanced art programs
for young people”

ART STRONG

convinced them to enter the following year. With more knowledge
and determination, they prepared an even better plan and won in

2019. They didn't leave their teaching jobs yet, they began to focus
on the new business.

The plan called for classes for toddlers and elementary school
children after school and weekends as well as a summer camp.
Finding space was their first order of business, and they found the
perfect spot on a mixed-use block of LIC. It was near residential
areas on the waterfront and Court Square with plenty of families
with young children. And though LIC was an adult art Mecca with
such museums as MoMA PS1and SculptureCenter, there weren’t
many places where young people could enhance their talents.

The pandemic caused them
to rework their timing, but
Cavadas and Lokken remained
confident, and in June 2021,
Art Strong launched. Since
then they have expanded their
programs and now work with
children of all ages, teens,
and families. It wasn’t their
intention, their business has become a catalyst for other new
ventures in the bustling community.

Not only do they work at Art Strong full-time these days,
Cavadas and Lokken have hired more than 10 part-time staffers
and consultants. They are proof that creativity takes many different
forms, including starting a small business. W

https://www.artstrongnyc.com/
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Building v E
~bodies to build |
abusiness :

“l started working out around age 13,” said Kaiser Serrajuddin,
founder of Better Body Bootcamp. Hitting the weights and running
five miles a day, Serradjuddin prided himself on being the strongest
kid growing up. But for him, fitness was more than achieving a
healthy lifestyle or an attractive body - it was a passion. And a little
over two decades ago, he turned it into his career.

When Serrajuddin was in his early 20s, he began his career with
a job at Bally Total Fitness, a popular exercise chain in the early
2000s. He quickly realized that the club was not where he wanted
to continue his career and decided to embark on his own. After
Bally, he established a partnership with a gym in Astoria, where he
served as a fitness trainer. I
was essentially their training
department,” Serrajuddin said.
“That worked wonderfully but
| found that there needed to
be a way to give one-on-one
service.” So, he parted ways
with the gym, and in 2011,
sought to create his own boutique fitness studio: Better Body
Bootcamp.

When Serrajuddin started Better Body Bootcamp in 2011, the idea
of a boutique fitness studio was still somewhat novel. Although a
fan of gyms and the equipment they offered, Serrajuddin hoped to
offer members an alternative form of exercise — one that was better
suited to individual needs. “When you have gym equipment it is
meant to isolate only one muscle group at a time. That actually
is not conducive to the goals of the majority of the population,”
Serrajuddin said. “If you are a physique competitor or bodybuilder
competitor looking to hyper focus on specific muscle groups, then
the gym is appropriate for you. Better Body Bootcamp’s class is
meant to simulate what four to five hours of activity a day would
look like.” People in Seradjuddin’s classes engage in a number of

| found that there needed
to be a way to give
one-on-one service”

QEDC 2023

exercises -- from cardio to strength building — all designed to
improve the whole body.

Having opened a few new locations around New York, in 2019,
Serrajuddin began franchising out Better Body Bootcamp to others
interested in opening boutique fitness studios. “We were flying
high,” Serrajuddin said about the state of Better Body Bootcamp
upon entering the new decade. “We were pretty much signing a
franchise a month.” Unfortunately, however, this rapid growth
would not last. When Covid struck NYC in March of 2020, the
planned locations were put on hiatus and the existing ones faced a
tremendous challenge. “When
Covid happened we had to
shut our doors and we had to
reopen slowly,” Serrajuddin
said. “Before the vaccine, the
population didn’t want to come
in.” The pandemic left Better
Body Bootcamp in a state of
uncertainty it hadn’t witnessed
since the beginning.

Seeking ways to bring Better Body Bootcamp back on track,
Serajuddin and his team reached out to QEDC’s Entrepreneurship
Assistance Center and met Beny Castro. Working with him, Better
Body Bootcamp was able to acquire two New York State grants—
one worth $50,000 and another worth $25,400— to help the
business recover. “Post Covid, the game has changed so much,”
Serrajuddin said. “That was a great opportunity for us to really
catch up.” Despite the setbacks Better Body Bootcamp faced during
the pandemic, Serajuddin is confident that business is even better
than it was before. So for those interested in a novel way to get in
great shape, Better Body Bootcamp is worth checking cut. B

https://www.betterbodybootcamp.com/

QUEENS ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION
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QNSY

Five years ago, Jeremy Bohen and Tara Merdjanoff worked as
captains and servers at some of the best known restaurants in
New York City. The married couple also put on comedy cabarets at
various clubs.

This all changed when Covid hit. With lockdown restrictions
forcing restaurants to close, Bohen and Merdjanoff found
themselves unemployed and unconfident that their jobs would
ever return. “As time went on, it became clear that we wouldn’t
be necessarily coming back to our restaurants,” Merdjanoff
said. “We sort-of realized ‘oh, we
have the opportunity to really make a
transition.”” For the past few years, the
couple envisioned and worked towards
the creation of a beverage company. As
experts in bartending, they understood
the bottlenecks and challenges of serving
mixed drinks, and they wondered if
it would be possible to create a truly
delicious canned cocktail. With no end to the pandemic in sight,
Bohen and Merdjanoff devoted themselves fully to the idea, and
QNSY Sparkling Cocktails took off.

By the time they went all in on QNSY, they were thoroughly
prepared. For a number of years, the couple had consulted with
QEDC Director of the Women’s Business Center Andrea Ormefio,
one of the U.S. Small Business Administration’s resource partners
designed to assist women in starting and growing small businesses.
After taking QEDC’s New Idea to New Venture workshop, Bohen
and Merdjanoff worked with Ormefio to create a business plan for

A flavor for
every taste

“We were able to
identify something
that tasted good”

QNSY. “Alcohol regulations are not straightforward,” Merdjanoff
said. “It's not like tennis balls, where you just go make some and
then sell them.” These regulations posed some difficulty in getting
QNSY off the ground, but in some ways they actually helped the
company. New York does not permit the sale of wine and liquor in
grocery stores. Beer, however, is fine. QNSY, which uses fruit juice
and cane sugar as the alcohol base, avoids these restrictions and is
regulated similarly to beer. “We occupy a unique lane; when we go
to sell into a grocery store or beer depot, it’s a great opportunity
for that retailer,” Merdjanoff said, noting
that retailers no longer have to turn away
customers looking for these types of
drinks. This led to tremendous growth in
the ready-to-drink segment, and while
QNSY has followed many of the trends

of this segment, it prides itself on how it
differentiates its drinks from the crowd.
“We are built ‘flavor first,”” Merdjanoff
said. “Because of our background in bars and restaurants, we were
able to identify something that tasted good.”

QNSY has grown dramatically over the past year and is now in
nearly 250 stores across New York and New Jersey. Looking to the
future, QNSY hopes to scale up production using a $350,000 loan
it got with help from QEDC’s WBC, When asked for advice to give
to new entrepreneurs, Merdjanoff said to “ask questions and keep
going.” These wise words have clearly led to success. W

https://www.drinkqnsy.com/
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NIGHT MIARKET

On Saturday nights during the warm weather months, Flushing
Meadows Corona Park is bustling. Thousands come to enjoy
culture and cuisine from around the world. Queens Night Market
is the attraction. The weekly event, held from mid-April through
late-October, serves to celebrate the cultural diversity of Queens
by bringing together hundreds of independent vendars, each
offering unique food or merchandise. A proven success, QNM is

an experience the community looks
forward to each year — though only a
few short years ago, this was not the
case. Back in 2014, the creation of a
night market in New York City was only
an idea, and an outlandish one at that.
It was one man—John Wang—who
dedicated a chapter of his career into
making it a possibility, and turned QNM
into a reality.

Born and raised in Arlington, Texas,
Wang moved to NYC in 2009 to work as
a mergers-and-acquisitions lawyer for
Simpson Thacher & Bartlett. A recent
graduate of Yale Law School and Yale
School of Management, he sought
employment at the prestigious firm
to repay the debts of his education.

He worked there for four years before
quitting in 2013. “I realized | didn’t want
to work for anyone anymore,” Wang
said. “| felt like if | owned a business I'd
be more passionate about it.” Inspired
by childhood summers in Taiwan where
he explored popular night markets, he
conceived the idea of an NYC-based
bazaar and set out to make it a reality.

Wang contacted many people to get
QNM off the ground. “I was emailing
the mayor, the governor..anyone who
had anything to do with anything.” The

process was long and difficult, but step by step he made progress.
Searching for a location, he eventually determined Queens would
be the best spot, and in particular, Flushing Meadows Corona Park.
The New York Hall of Science gave it a place to operate, and the

Queens Tourism Council offered support.

When QNM opened in April 2015, Wang didn’t expect a huge
turnout. With 40 vendors, it was considerably smaller than he had

“The goal for the
Queens Night Market
is to represent as many
countries through
our food and vendors
as possible”

envisioned, so his expectations were relatively low for the number
of patrons that would show up. “I thought a good turnout would
be 2,000, 3,000 people,” Wang said, “but tens of thousands of
people showed up.” The vendors quickly sold out, and the musical
performers found it difficult to play. The scene was undeniably
chaotic, but proved the idea was a success: people wanted to be
there. This changed the process for recruiting vendors. Wang had

found it difficult to convince them to
participate, but suddenly he had an
overabundance of applications. “| got
home, opened the vendor application
site and | think | had 300 applications
just in that 18 hours,” Wang said. “Since
that day, we can always fill the space.”

With nearly 1,000 vendor
applications each year, Wang is close to
realizing his initial vision. “The goal for
the Queens Night Market is to represent
as many countries through our food
and vendors as possible,” he said. Over
the past seven years, the number has
reached 95, a significant improvement
from opening night. Wang strives to
improve upen this number— as well as
explore other endeavors for QNM.

Wang has also written an award-
winning cookbook with his wife, Storm
Garner, about QNM’s cuisine and the
vendors who make it. Partnering with
the Queens Economic Development
Corporation, he has produced numerous
free small business seminars and
collaborated on “Fuel the Frontlines,”
which hired QNM vendors to provide
meals to health care workers during
Covid’s height.

Imitation is the sincerest form of flattery, and Wang is often
presented with pitches to open markets in other cities— although
he consistently declines them. QNM, therefore, will remain an
NYC institution. For anybody interested in a tremendous general

experience and a tasty meal for $6, QNM is a must and the perfect

way to spend a Saturday night. W
https://queensnightmarket.com/

Sharon Medina / Queens Night Market
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For Gisela Andre, candles are more than just a pleasant fragrance
and a pretty sight. Ever since she was a young girl in Venezuela, she
adored them. Her grandmother’s house was filled with candles, and
she loved to sit in front of them, taking in the aromas and watching
them melt. Now, candles are the nostalgic bridge between her
childhood in Venezuela and her adulthood in New York. Eight years
ago, she decided to learn how to make her own, a hobby that is
now her career.

During her first attempt, her process was far from refined. “When
| started, | would buy candles from the dollar store, and remelt
them,” Andre said. “I started practicing, and through trial and error
got better at making them.” Eventually, she moved away from
melting other candles for their wax and found a supplier that sells
supplies to independent producers. By 2019, she had developed the
skills and technical know-how
to start her own business.

12018, andre foundeaseene - YOU don’t want to be working
for somebody, think of
ways you can grow yourself or
better yourself”

by Heaven, her own candle
company, at around the same
time her son was diagnosed
with Autism Spectrum Disorder.
At the time she was working
for the city government in a
customer service position, a
demanding job that limited her time with her son. With Scent by
Heaven, Andre looked to create a career that would offer flexibility
to spend more time with her son by working from home. “I am able
to do what | love, but at the same time, | am able to be there for
him,” she said. Andre also lauded her grandmother’s entrepreneurial
spirit. “I grew up in a business environment,” she said. “My grandma
had a jewelry business. She always told to us “You don’t want to

be working for somebody, think of ways you can grow yourself or
better yourself.”’

The name “Scent by Heaven” also comes from her grandmother.
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When she was a child, her grandmother’s nickname for her was
“Cielo,” the Spanish word for “sky” or “heaven.”

Andre began by creating a website as an online platform to
sell her candles, but found that she didn’t get much traffic. She
realized that customers wanted to have the opportunity to smell
her candles, something they could only do in person. While at
the Sunnyside Shines market, she was told about QEDC’s Made in
Queens program, which connects borough businesses to local retail
opportunities. Andre reached out to the program’s director, Michael
Gillen, who certified Scent by Heaven as an MiQ business. “After
I met Michael, | continued doing vendor’s events,” Andre said. “I
would constantly send emails to him saying ‘If you know of any
vendor’s events, I'm there!"” To this day, Andre stays in contact with
Michael to help her find retail
opportunities as local markets
are still the primary driver of
sales for her company.

Andre is in the process of
creating a sister company that
would focus on producing
candles in an environmentally
friendly way through the use of
recycled alcohol bottles. “Can-
dles use a lot of glass,” Andre
said. “During COVID there was a shortage of supplies.” She believes
using the glass from discarded wine bottles can remedy these short-
ages as well as provide an environmentally friendly solution to the
mostly landfill-bound glass from these bottles. She also hopes to
open a brick-and-mortar store for Scent by Heaven, allowing cus-
tomers to come in and see her candles in person. For now, however,
she will continue to sell through local markets, so if you see her and
her candles at one, be sure to take in the aromas! W

https://scentbyheaven.net/
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For three decades Robert Kaskel worked almost exclusively for
technology companies— starting a few of his own along the way. By
2010 however, Kaskel’s tech future became uncertain. “I started to
not be comfortable with the company | had,” Kaskel said. To clear
his head and distance himself from the business, Kaskel moved from
Manhattan to the Rockaways. “While we were out here, we made

a whole lot of new friends,” Kaskel said. “Somebody who | became
friendly with suggested that he might be willing to back me if |
decided to open up a restaurant. He said, ‘Your wife Metta is a great
Thai cook and you guys are great hosts— the Rockaways could use
some good Thai food.” Kaskel quickly became enamored with the
idea and he began his search for
a place to open a restaurant.

He eventually came across
375 Beach 92nd St., where Thai
Rock is located today. It was
big, with plenty of room for
diners to eat both inside and
out, and had a beautiful bayside view, but it was also dilapidated.
Renovating it would be a huge task, and a tremendous financial
burden. Still, Robert and Metta knew this was the location they
wanted. “It was just such a perfect spot,” Kaskel said. He quickly
got to work putting together a business plan and presented it to his
possible funder. But by that point the funder bowed out. Kaskel
was set on opening a restaurant there, and he sought any way to
fund it. “l ended up funding Thai Rock in three ways; savings, a
couple of friends pitched in a little bit of money, and the rest of it
was all done on credit card.” Kaskel said. “It was the craziest way to
start a business like this.” Still, he and Metta found a way to make

TR VS =

“The Rockaways

could use some good
Thai food”

QEDC 2023

it work, and on June 3, 2011, Thai Rock
opened for business.

The first few months Thai Rock was
open, the restaurant was a success with a
growing reputation and a steady stream
of customers, but a year and half after
opening, Hurricane Sandy devastated the
Rockaways. “Sandy had a $1.5 million
price tag.” Kaskel said. “Thai Rock was
underwater; five feet up, it was over the
bar and over everything.” After initially
being denied a loan from the SBA, Kaskel
was eventually able to secure one for
$750,000 to help restore Thai Rock. For the
other three-quarters of a million dollars
needed to restore it, Kaskel took on high-
interest, short-term loans, which, while
financially difficult to sustain, allowed Thai
Rock to repair the damages and re-open.
Following Hurricane Sandy Thai Rock was
chosen to be on an episode of the TV
show “Restaurant Redemption.” While
filming the show, Kaskel was introduced
to Rob MacKay, Director of Public
Relations, Marketing, and Tourism at the
QEDC. “Unbeknownst to me, “Restaurant
Redemption” reached out to the QEDC,”
Kaskel said. MacKay was invited onto
the show to serve as a surprise guest and help promote Thai Rock.
Kaskel, who had already worked with QEDC years prior, knew
who MacKay was, but nonetheless found it fortuitous the show
re-introduced him. It was then that MacKay informed him about
the Queens Tourism Council, a program of the QEDC designed to
promote tourism to the borough. MacKay encouraged Thai Rock to
join, which Kaskel agreed to, and began promoting the restaurant.
“It’s led me to a lot of good connections,” Kaskel said about QTC’s
promotion of Thai Rock. “| get recognized now!”

Al fresco
dining on
the bay

Since recovering from
Hurricane Sandy, Thai Rock has
still experienced its fair share
of challenges. Most notably the
COVID pandemic. Thai Rock,
however, has survived that
too, shifting to take-out and
delivery to stay afloat. Kaskel
even believes, in some ways, this shift to take-out could serve as an
opportunity. He believes the number of people ordering take-out
will remain high, but people will eventually want to return to in-
person eating and bars the same way they did before. In this way,
Kaskel hopes to increase Thai Rock’s customer base. Whether or not
this turns out to be true has yet to be seen, but Thai Rock stands
as a success either way. A resilient business founded by resilient
entrepreneurs, Thai Rock remains a culinary landmark in Rockaway,
and is well worth the visit for those in search of great food and
views. H

thairock.us
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THE
Boys’
Room

Five years ago, Cindy McField-Asamoah attended a panel
discussion that changed her life. The topic was white women who
teach Black boys at independent schools, and as a mother of two
Black boys in independent schools, she had to attend. She listened
to the panel - diversity directors, teachers, parents - finding their
comments interesting and enlightening. As she left, she reflected on
what she had heard and the experience of her children and those
like them. After a few months, she came to a realization. “I felt like
something was missing,” she said. “| realized that it was an affinity
program that needed to be in place.” From the beginning of middle
school to the end of high school, she was one of only three Brown
students in her classroom, and for this
generation, she wanted to give Black
and Brown students a special space.
McField-Asamoah decided to create The
Boys’ Room, a mentoring program for
elementary-aged Black and Brown boys.
To test the waters, she prepared a pilot
program for the coming school year.

By the time she started The Boys’
Room, McField-Asamoah was already a seasoned entrepreneur. For
the previous five years, she had owned and operated Citi Mosaic
Real Estate. The experience of launching and growing a real estate
company had prepared her for starting a new business. She had the
educational background necessary to create a mentorship program,
too, as during her undergraduate years at Southern Connecticut
State University, she had studied clinical social work. Nevertheless,
she needed to find out if there was any demand for the business
she wanted to create. She began by reaching out to the mothers
of Black and Brown boys in independent schools. “| wanted to see
if they would be interested if | were to create something like this,”
McField-Asamoah said. “l was receiving emails, texts, and calls

“The certifications
have opened
up doors for me”

from several different women who wanted their sons to be a part of
this pilot program. Within a matter of a few days | had a group and
had to start a waitlist.”

McField-Asamoah then turned her focus to creating a
curriculum, She eventually settled on one that was designed

to promote five core values: self-esteem; respect; awareness;

belonging; and leadership. In the spring of 2018, she put the
curriculum to test, meeting with the boys weekly. In 2019,
McField-Asamoah turned it into a full-fledged company: The
Boys' Room, LLC.

Looking to promote her business, she
sought M/WBE (Minority and Women-
Owned Business Enterprise) certification
in 2020. Offered by New York State, M/
WBE status creates opportunities for
businesses owned by women or racial
and ethnic minorities. She reached
out to former QEDC Deputy Director
Ricardi Calixte to help her navigate the
complicated process of obtaining the certification for Citi Mosaic
Real Estate and The Boys’ Room. “We were working together for
almost a year,” she said. “If | didn’t have his help, | don’t think
1 would have been able to complete the certification process.”
McField-Asamoah is appreciative. “The certifications have opened
up doors for me.”

Since 2020, the company has grown significantly. It mentors
approximately 50 students now, and it has expanded beyond New
York. During the Covid pandemic, The Boys’ Room began an online
program that McField-Asamoah hopes to expand further, W

https://www.theboysroom.org/
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CUPCAKE

“Almost every

night we were
producing at the
Entrepreneur Space”
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In 2015, when Andrea Meggiato asked his future wife, Michelle, out
for the first time, he said it was going to be a “pizza date.” What

he did not tell her is that — rather than going out to eat pizza — he
would teach her how to make it. Andrea is from Italy, and worked as
a chef since he was 16. In the Big Apple, he met Michelle through a
mutual friend, and their relationship (and business) blossomed.

Before Andrea and Michelle officially launched The Pizza
Cupcake, they made their pizza snacks for friends and family. It
didn’t take long, however, for them to realize the opportunity they
had. In January of 2018, Andrea quit his job and jumped full time
into The Pizza Cupcake, and from there, the gourmet pizza snack
made with premium Italian ingredients and trade-secret dough
transformed into a business.

The Pizza Cupcake’s first corporate catering order came from
Instagram in Los Angeles, but what really allowed the company to
prove their concept was Smorgasburg, one of New York City’s most
prestigious food markets. In fall of 2018, the couple met with the
founders of Smorgasburg for a tasting. If they approved, The Pizza
“It’s one of those
types of opportunities where if you get accepted it’s a stamp of
approval for your concept,” Michelle said.

Cupcake would become a vendor for the season.

The day before their wedding, Andrea and Michelle received an
email from Smorgasburg, accepting them to be a vendor. “When we
got the call we were in Venice,” Michelle said. “We thought ‘this is
the best gift!” So, we didn't go on our honeymoon.” The couple flew
back to NYC to begin their business journey.

Back in Gotham, Andrea and Michelle quickly realized they
would need a commercial kitchen to produce enough pizza
cupcakes for Smorgasburg, which operates in Brooklyn. Through the
search they came across the Entrepreneur Space operated by the
Queens Economic Development Corporation. “The Entrepreneur
Space was really helpful with everything that we needed to get the
business up and running,” Michelle said. A few months into working
there, they found themselves with another great opportunity. In
April of 2019, the executive chef at Citi Field, home to the New York
Mets, offered The Pizza Cupcake a stadium concession opportunity,
allowing them to ramp up production significantly. “We started at
the Entrepreneur Space with overnight shifts on weekends,” Andrea
said, “After we started doing business with Citi Field almost every
night we were producing at the Entrepreneur Space.” The Pizza
Cupcake’s greatest opportunity, however, came in February of 2021,
when Andrea and Michelle pitched their business on ABC’s “Shark
Tank.” There, they struck a deal with famous investor/entrepreneur
Lori Greiner. The Pizza Cupcake achieved internet fame with the
official YouTube video of their “Shark Tank” pitch, which amassed
3.85 million views, and numerous other videos and articles about it
posted all over the internet. This helped the company achieve cne
of Andrea and Michelle’s main geals: successfully launching into the
retail sphere. The Pizza Cupcake is now sold in retail stores across
the country with a recent expansion in more than 1,600 Walmart
stores. “We've just experienced explosive growth,” Michelle said.
The Pizza Cupcake now stands as a testament to entrepreneurial
spirit. It is a success story all prospective entrepreneurs should keep
in mind when dreaming about growing their own business. B

thepizzacupcake.com
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TIKKUN
BBQ

“I feel like a lot of people start their own business because they
hate their jobs or want to get rich,” said Eli Goldman, the founder
of Tikkun BBQ. “I literally thought | might die during the pandemic.”
When Covid reached New York City in the spring of 2020, Goldman
witnessed the full extent of it. At the time, he lived in Astoria, near
Mount Sinai Queens. He heard ambulances pass by and watched

as the hospital struggled with the influx of patients. So, he sought
a new hobby, one that would serve
as an escape from the tragedy around

him and provide joy to his community.
He found his inspiration from Italy,
where people were helping neighbors
by lowering baskets of food from

their windows or balconies for those
in need. Goldman decided to do the
same, though rather than give away
bread, he decided to sell it and donate
the earnings to charity. This marked
the start of what Goldman called
“Tikkun Bakery,” but it didn’t take long
for him to pivot to a new cuisine.

Sitting on the same balcony where
he lowered bread was a smoker: an
18-inch Weber Smokey Mountain.
Seeing it, he realized that he could
transition from bread to barbecue
and bring the community together.
“There’s something about barbecue
that cuts through all the noise” Gold-
man said. “You can be Republican or
Democrat, from here or from Indone-
sia or India or Africa there’s something
about meat and fire that’s a universal
“Meat Rapunzel,”
as he was called, came down from

language.” Soon,

his balcony to spread this universal
language via monthly pop-up BBQs
around NYC. Tikkun BBQ was born.

From the beginning, Goldman
wanted Tikkun BBQ to be more than just about barbecue. He had
a long history in working with nenprofits and service organizations.
After college, he served in AmeriCorps for four years, volunteering
around the country, and upon returning to NYC, he worked in
fund-raising for nonprofits. With Tikkun BBQ, he wanted to blur
the line between business and nonprofit and use his cooking to
help his community. The name “Tikkun BBQ" reflects that. “Tikkun”

A
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“We’ve helped generate
over $100,000 in
donations to nonprofits
since starting
Tikkun BBQ”’

originates from the Jewish concept of “Tikkun Olam,” which
translates to “repair the world.” Goldman views Tikkun Olam as
critical to his Jewish identity, and the company’s main goals are
to “make exceptional BBQ,” “invite everyone to have a seat at
our table,” and “help others create their own table.” Under the
” Goldman noted. “We
helped pay for the cab rides of sick or elderly people to go vote

last tenet “you can cover so many things,

more easily; we do food collection
drives; coat drives; voter registration;
distributed hundreds of COVID tests;
and we've helped generate over
$100,000 in donations to nonprofits
since starting Tikkun BBQ in April
2020"

' t u‘! é' Still small and new, but looking to

. expand, Tikkun BBQ partook in QEDC's
2022 StartUP! business competition,
an annual program for Queens-

based entrepreneurs that awards
grants to winners in four categories:
food; technology; community; and
sustainability. Goldman heard about
StartUP! from prior winner Abou

Sow, the owner of Prince Abou’s
Butchery. Having found out about the
competition late, Goldman pressured
himself to prepare Tikkun BBQ for the
application quickly. “I had to make a
website. | had to get a certain type of
permit. | had to get my food handlers
license.” This quick preparation was
worth it for Goldman and Tikkun BBQ,
as they were chosen as the winner

in the community category. “I cried,”
Goldman said, reflecting upon the
news that he had won, “for me, this is
about so much more than barbecue.
People saw the work we were putting
into this, how this is a real thing.”
Goldman plans to use the prize money to scale up Tikkun BBQ by
buying a car to tow his new smoker. He hopes to bring his pop-ups—

From the
balcony to the,
communlty

and his message— to more remote parts of NYC and provide more
barbecue for people once he gets there; Tikkun BBQ often sells out
within a few hours. In doing so, Tikkun BBQ is paylng it forward to
the Queens community. B

https://www.tikkunbbg.com/
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDING 06/30/22

Results

Business Starts 99
Loans/Capital 54
Jobs Created 122

Loan Amount

$1,900,000.00

Gross Revenue

$2,563,000.00

BALANCE SHEET
(UNAUDITED)
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalent 1,384,661
Receivable 888,682
Prepaid expense 2,074
Fixed asset - net 75,737
Security deposit 14,855
ToTaL ASSETS 2,366,009

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 55,258
Security deposits 73,991
TOTAL LIABILITIES 129,249

NET ASSETS
Unrestricted | 2,236,760
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,366,009

AND NET ASSETS

STATEMENT OF REVENUE AND

Total Clients 977
Client Demographics

Black or African American 40%
White 39%
Native Hawaiian or other Pacific 2%
Islander

Asian 16%
Native American or Alaska Native 2%
Not of Hispanic Origin 1%
Hispanic Origin 29%
Male 24%
Female 76%
Programs

Number of Webinars 58
Hours of Counseling Sessions 1007
Number of Clients Counseled 300

\ ot

NYC Commissior'ilfg._gf Small Business j
“Services visits the Entrépreneur Space

EXPENDITURE
(UNAUDITED)

REVENUE
Government grants 1,529,323
Private grants and donations | 480,303
Program income 565,367
Interest and others 20,630
Total revenue 2,595,623
EXPENDITURE
PROGRAM ACTIVITIES
Business Services 1,679,434
Training 335,887
Neighborhood Development/ | 223,924
Tourism
Total Programs 2,239,245
SUPORTING SERVICES
Administrative and general 214,533
Fundraising 100,337
ToTAL 314,870
SUPPORTING SERVICES
TOTAL EXPENSES | 2,554,115
TOTAL SURPLUS | 41,508
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QEDC gratefully acknowledges the
support of the following:*
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Better New York; Association of
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BlaQue Resource Network; Business
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College, Rockaway Development &
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Commerce; Street Vendor Project;
Sunnyside Shines; TechNYC; The
Fortune Society; The Horticultural
Society of New York; Vaughn College
of Aviation; Volunteers of Legal
Service; York College

Designed by Razor Ribbon Creative
Group ® www.razorribboncg.com
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QEDC 2023

QEDC

ON SociAL
MEDIA, IN THE
COMMUNITY!

PRINCE ABOs

GRAND opewinG - ,

|

www.facebook.com/queensedc Queens Economic Entrepreneur Space

twitter.com/queensedc Development Corporation 36-46 37th Street

wwww.instagram.com/queens_edc 120-55 Queens Boulevard, Suite 309 Long Island City, NY 11101
Kew Gardens, NY 11424 www.entrepreneurspace.org
www.queensny.org T: 718-263-0546 F: T: 718-392-0025

718-263-0594
info@queensny.org
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QEDC Performance Measures, Evaluation & Status for FY 2023
Goal Actual

Clients served 800 950
Business Starts 50 65
Loan and/or grants received by clients $1.5M 52.1M
Gross client revenue (sample survey) S2M $2.5M
Joh created 100 130
Counseling session (unique) 250 270
Webinars 60 85




